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Access to this document is restricted to persons who have given the certification set forth below. If 
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please be aware that you are only permitted to access it if you are able to give the certification. 
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Cincinnati Global Syndicate 318 has traded at Lloyd’s for over forty years. In that time

the Syndicate has grown and evolved to meet the changing demands of its clients and

is well positioned to take advantage of the opportunities seen in today’s increasingly

volatile marketplace. Over time, the Syndicate has built up longstanding relationships

with, and offered continuity to, its brokers, clients and capital providers alike. The

combination of its experienced team of underwriting, claims and support personnel, and

the ability to make the best use of increasingly sophisticated statistical techniques in

support of its decisions, maximises the offering it presents to each of its counterparties.
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Cincinnati Global Syndicate 318 1

Financial highlights

2022 calendar year

£250.4m(2021: £179.2m)
gross premiums written

£25.8m(2021: £23.0m profit
for the year)

profit for year

86.9%(2021: 83.4%)
Combined ratio including Managing Agency fee
and profit commission

£0.2m(2021: (£0.13m))
annual investment return

£232m(2021: £232m)
2022 capacity

Note:· The combined ratio is net claims incurred (inclusive

of IBNR) and net operating expenses (excluding

profit/loss on exchange) expressed as a

percentage of net earned premium.
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2 Cincinnati Global Syndicate 318

Directors and administration

MANAGING AGENCY:
DIRECTORS AND ADMINISTRATION
Cincinnati Global Underwriting Agency Limited is the Lloyd’s Managing Agent for Cincinnati Global
Syndicate 318 and is authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority and regulated by the
Financial Conduct Authority and the Prudential Regulation Authority.

Directors:
T.C. Cracas (non-executive)
D.C. Eales
A. Hoffmann (resigned 31 August 2022)
M.A. Langston
R.J. Martin (non-executive) (retired by rotation 27 May 2022)
P.M. Murray (non-executive) (resigned 31 August 2022)
R.A. Pexton (non-executive chairman)
G.M. Tuck
G.A.M. Bonvarlet (non-executive) (appointed 1 June 2022)
R.B. Scott (non-executive) (appointed 31 August 2022)

Company secretary
S. Kaur (appointed 1 January 2022)
A. Hoffmann (resigned 1 January 2022)

The registered office of Cincinnati Global Underwriting Agency Limited is One Minster Court, Mincing
Lane, London EC3R 7AA. The registered number of Cincinnati Global Underwriting Agency Limited
is 4039137.

Syndicate
Active underwriter
N.M. Chalk

Bankers
Citibank, N.A.
Royal Bank of Canada
Lloyds Banking Group Plc

Investment manager
Amundi (UK) Ltd

Actuary
Deloitte LLP

Independent auditor
Deloitte LLP
1 New Street Square
London, EC4A 3HQ
United Kingdom
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Report of the directors of the managing agent
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Introduction
The directors of the Managing Agent present
their Managing Agent’s report for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

This annual report is prepared using the annual
basis of accounting as required by Statutory
Instrument No 1950 of 2008, the Insurance
Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and
Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008.
However, since the Syndicate benefits from a
capital base that includes traditional names, as
well as corporate members, where possible and
appropriate, we have endeavoured to explain
the events of the calendar year in the context of
the applicable underlying years of account.

Managing Agents are also required to prepare a
Managing Agent’s report, financial statements
and related notes, and supporting disclosure for
members participating on the 2020 underwriting
year of account, which closed at 31 December
2022. These are incorporated into this
document on pages 63 to 90.

Result for the 2022 Calendar Year
For the year ended 31 December 2022,
Syndicate 318 has generated an overall profit of
£25.8m compared to a profit of £23.0m in 2021,
and a combined ratio of 86.9% (2021: 83.4%).

An analysis of the contribution to the overall
result made by the individual underwriting years
of account is as follows:

2020
and Prior
Years of
Account

£000

2021
Year of

Account
£000

2022
Year of

Account
£000

2022
Calendar

Year
Combined

£000

2021
Calendar

Year
Combined

£000.....................................................................................................................................................................
Gross Earned Premium 2,923 93,544 132,071 228,538 169,614

Reinsurer’s Share 443 (10,042) (30,953) (40,552) (29,643)

Net Earned Premium 3,366 83,502 101,118 187,986 139,971

Gross Claims Paid (52,769) (35,799) (17,242) (105,810) (98,924)

Reinsurer’s Share 8,868 3,889 272 13,029 6,981

Net Claims Paid (43,901) (31,910) (16,970) (92,781) (91,943)

Change in provision for gross claims 53,615 (17,491) (81,128) (45,004) (3,122)

Change in provision for reinsurer’s share (2,843) 12,062 27,601 36,820 24,771

Change in provision for net claims 50,772 (5,429) (53,527) (8,184) 21,649

Other technical income, net of reinsurance – – – – –

Net Operating Expenses (2,328) (26,891) (33,166) (62,384) (46,381)

Balance on Technical Account 7,909 19,272 (2,545) 24,636 23,296

Net Investment Income 40 226 (57) 209 (130)

(Loss)/profit on exchange (154) 896 190 932 (175)

Profit/(loss) for the financial year 7,795 20,394 (2,412) 25,777 22,991

Other comprehensive income –
currency translation (343) (390) (80) (813) 61

Total comprehensive income 7,452 20,004 (2,492) 24,964 23,052
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4 Cincinnati Global Syndicate 318

Report of the directors of the managing agent
for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

Principal Activities
The principal activity of Syndicate 318 is the
transaction of general insurance and
reinsurance business written in the United
Kingdom at Lloyd’s. The Syndicate has a core
Property account which is complemented by
speciality lines of business, which provide the
Syndicate with the opportunity for growth as well
as diversification within the portfolio. The
Property account covers worldwide risks with a
concentration of insureds’ domiciled in the US.
This account is subdivided into risks accepted
under direct and facultative policies, and
business written under binding authorities. The
Syndicate’s speciality lines are Contingency,
Credit and Political Risk, Political Violence,
Specie, CSUPR, and Consortia.

The CSUPR initiative has been developed with
the Managing Agency’s ultimate parent company,
Cincinnati Financial Corporation “CFC”, and
allows the Syndicate to introduce business into
the Lloyd’s Market from CFC’s agency network.
The Consortia arrangements allow the Syndicate
to access lines of business where it doesn’t have
dedicated underwriting expertise.

Business review – financial
The business review provides a commentary on
the financial and non- financial performance of
the Syndicate in 2022. The review discusses the
business written and earned, as well as the
rating environment. We have also provided an
overview of the Syndicate’s claims experience,
including the performance and adequacy of
technical provisions. The effect of
non-underwriting transactions including
operating expenses, rate of exchange
movements, and returns from cash and
investments are also detailed. Where
appropriate, we have detailed the contribution to

the result of each individual underwriting year.
The Syndicate’s key performance indicators are
summarised in the table below:

KPI 2022 2021...............................................................................
Gross premiums written £250.4m £179.2m

Reinsurance ceded £41.2m £32.6m

Profit for the year £25.8m £23.0m

Gross loss ratio 66.0% 60.2%

Net loss ratio 53.7% 50.2%

Operating expense ratio 33.2% 33.1%

Combined ratio 86.9% 83.4%

Annual investment return £0.2m (£0.13m)

Syndicate capacity £232m £232m

Note:· Gross loss ratio expresses gross incurred claims

(including IBNR) as a percentage of gross earned

premiums.

· Net loss ratio expresses net incurred claims

(including IBNR) as a percentage of net earned

premiums.

· Operating expense ratio expresses net operating

expenses as a percentage of net earned

premiums.

Underwriting and reinsurance
The Syndicate continued to benefit from a
positive rating environment in 2022, with a
continuation of the momentum seen in 2021.
This was particularly true of Property binders
which saw solid rate increases throughout the
year. Increases in rating on direct and
facultative policies were less pronounced on a
year-on-year basis but the account still saw
improvements in terms and conditions across
most areas. Property risks also saw increases in
premiums arising from higher inflation, which
has increased insured values.
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The rate increases across Speciality lines were

generally lower than Property business,

although rates on Political Violence business

increased following the conflict in Ukraine. The

Syndicate written income has been broadly in

line with its business plan targets in most areas.

Overall, the level of gross written premiums has

increased to £250.4m, which has been achieved

through a combination of the improvements in

rating, further establishment of Speciality lines,

and a decrease in the average rate of Sterling

against the US dollar. In original currency gross

premiums have increased by the equivalent to

around £53.4m.

The effect of foreign exchange on the change in

the amount of premium written in the year,

compared the comparative period is shown in

the table below. The average rate of exchange

for US dollars, used to retranslate the profit and

loss account, for the year ended 31 December

2022 is 1.24 compared to 1.38 in the

comparative period. The impact of the change in

the average rate of Canadian dollars is much

smaller.

£000s...............................................................................
Gross premiums written 2021 179,206

Increase in premium income from

rate of exchange 17,820

Increase in premiums in the year 53,364

Gross premiums written in 2022 250,390

Gross earned premiums for the year are

£228.5m, which is higher than £169.6m earned

in 2021, which is following a similar pattern to

the written income.

The composition of the account has remained

broadly the same, although the Speciality lines

continue to make up a higher percentage of the

overall book. The table below illustrates the split

of gross written premium between classes on

business written and incepted in the year.

Gross written premiums
2022

%
2021

%...............................................................................
Aviation (0.2) (0.1)

Property – Direct and

Facultative 59.0 63.0

Property – Binding

Authorities 22.1 22.9

Credit and Political

Risk 4.6 3.6

Political Violence 2.4 2.3

Specie 4.3 3.8

Contingency 6.6 4.5

CSUPR 1.0 –

Consortia 0.2 –

100% 100%

The reinsurance premiums ceded in the year

have increased to £41.2m from £32.6m in 2021.

The change in the year has arisen from a

combination of higher reinsurance costs and

more proportional reinsurance from growth in

the underlying business written on Speciality

lines.

The reinsurance premium earned in the year of

£40.5m (£29.6m 2021) is marginally below the

reinsurance premium ceded, as the proportional

element is deferred to future periods, whilst the

main programme is purchased to cover losses

occurring during the year, with earnings patterns

weighted towards the windstorm season.
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6 Cincinnati Global Syndicate 318

Report of the directors of the managing agent
for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

Technical Result
The calendar year technical result before
investment return comprises profits and losses
on the open and closing years of account. It has
been another good year for the Syndicate, and
we are reporting a healthy profit for the year.
The Direct and Facultative element of the
Property account performed extremely well,
despite sustaining losses from Hurricane Ian in
the year. The Syndicate’s gross exposure to
Hurricane Ian is estimated at £73.1m which
reduces to £36.9m after recoveries from the
Syndicate’s reinsurance programme. The
Syndicate has not been materially affected by
the crisis in Ukraine. The strong market
conditions have meant that large and attritional
have continued to remain at relatively low levels
across almost all lines of business.

Contribution of 2022 year of account to the
calendar year result
The 2022 year of account has contributed a loss
for the calendar year, before investment income,
and currency exchange of £2.5m. The year has
witnessed very good market conditions across
the book of business but particularly for
Property risks written on a direct and facultative
basis. In terms of number of major losses, it has
not been a particularly active windstorm season,
but Hurricane Ian was a significant loss to the
Syndicate as well as the wider insurance
market. The year of account has also been
affected to a far lesser extent by other
weather-based events in 2022.

A deficit position at this stage of progression is
not uncommon, owing to the large proportion of
reinsurance premiums earned in the first twelve
months of a year of account. We would
generally view a small deficit at this stage as a
positive.

Major losses (including IBNR) in the calendar
year, affecting the 2022 year of account are
summarised in the table below.

Loss
Gross

£m
Net
£m...............................................................................

Hurricane Ian 53.6 28.3

Hurricane Fiona 3.4 3.4

Winter Storm Elliott 2.2 2.2

Hurricane Nicole 0.6 0.6

59.8 34.5

The Syndicate continues to earn its acquisition
costs in line with gross earned premium, whilst
administrative expenses, and Names expenses
are earned as they are incurred. Managing
agent’s profit commission are earned in line with
cumulative profits to a year of account, after
allowances for the potential impact of deficit
clauses within the Agency Agreement.

Net operating expenses are £33.2m, which is
an increase from the £25.0m charged to the
2021 underwriting year at the same stage. The
increases in premiums has resulted in higher
brokerage in the year. There has been no
profit commission accrued as the 2022
underwriting year is currently in a loss
position.

The investment return for the year was a
negative result of £0.1m, as investment
charges were greater than returns.

Profit on exchange, and currency retranslation
losses in the year stands at an overall gain of
£0.1m for the 2022 underwriting year.

Members’ balances stand at an overall deficit
of £2.5m.



SC0

SC1

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

✓ G:\Jobs\16001-16200\16067\Artwork\1.WIN
27/2/2023 10:14:04 Galley 9 All together

318

Cincinnati Global Syndicate 318 7

Contribution of 2021 year of account to the
calendar year result
The 2021 year of account has contributed a
profit for the calendar year, before investment
income, and currency exchange of £19.3m.
The year has benefited from prior accident
year releases as well as good loss experience
from attritional and large losses. The Speciality
lines have incurred a small number of large
risk losses in the year, although these are
isolated in nature and within the normal course
of business. The year of account also has
exposure to Hurricane Ian, which has largely
arisen from risks written under binding
authorities on the Property account.

Major losses (including IBNR) in the calendar
year, affecting the 2021 year of account are
summarised in the table below:

Loss
Gross

£m
Net
£m............................................................................

Hurricane Ian 19.5 8.6

Crisis in Ukraine 1.8 1.8

21.3 10.4

Net operating expenses are £26.9m, against a
comparative figure of £18.8m in calendar year
2021. The growth of speciality lines has led to
higher amounts of brokerage being paid, and
the move into profitability has also seen more
profit commissions accrued in the year.

There is a small investment return for the
calendar year attributable to the 2021
underwriting year of account of £0.2m.

Profit on exchange, and currency retranslation
affects have produced an overall gain of
around £0.4m.

Members’ balances currently stand at an
overall surplus of £11.4m, after standard
personal expenses. We are forecasting a profit
in the range of 4.2% – 9.2% upon closure of
the 2021 year of account.

Contribution of 2020 year of account to the
calendar year result
The 2020 year of account has contributed a
profit for the calendar year, before investment
income, and currency exchange of £7.9m. In
2022 there has been an improvement of £5.4m
on closed year reserves, which makes up a
significant portion of the result.

The reserves set on the 2020 pure year of
account at the end of last year have proved
robust, and adverse claims development has
been relatively small.

Net operating expenses are £2.3m. Most of
this movement is generated from brokerage on
binders earned in the year and profit
commissions accrued.

The investment return for the year is around
£0.1m for the year.

Loss on exchange, and currency retranslation
losses in the year stands at an overall loss of
£0.5m for the 2020 underwriting year.

The 2020 year of account has closed at a
profit of £2.6m, and a result to a traditional
name of 1.1% of Capacity.
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8 Cincinnati Global Syndicate 318

Report of the directors of the managing agent
for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

Operating Expenses

2020
and Prior
Years of
Account

£000

2021
Year of

Account
£000

2022
Year of

Account
£000

2022
Calendar

Year
Combined

£000

2021
Calendar

Year
Combined

£000..............................................................................................................................................................
Acquisition Costs (Brokerage) (1,166) (21,701) (21,491) (44,358) (30,894)

Acquisition Costs (Other) (443) (1,956) (6,522) (8,921) (8,694)

Administrative Expenses (124) (373) (1,989) (2,486) (2,208)

Standard Personal Expenses – – (3,163) (3,163) (3,231)

Managing Agents Profit Commission (595) (2,861) – (3,456) (1,354)

Net Operating Expenses (2,328) (26,891) (33,165) (62,384) (46,381)

As in previous years, acquisition costs

(brokerage) represent the largest single

expense item in 2022. Other operating

expenses under the control of the Managing

Agency have increased in the year as the rise

in inflation has affected the running costs of

the business. The business has also required

additional resources as it has continued to

embark on its growth strategy. However, the

increase in overrider commissions received

from Speciality lines of business has helped

offset a proportion of these increases in the

year.

The Syndicate has accrued profit commission

on the 2021 and 2020 years of account in the

calendar year.
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Profit and loss on exchange and currency translation differences

The aggregate profit on exchange for the year is £0.1m, compared to a loss of £0.1m in 2021.

This has largely arisen from currency translation differences from conversion of the opening

balances and calendar year result from average to closing rates of exchange. The gain from

retranslating to from a US functional currency to a Sterling presentational currency is detailed in

currency translation differences. The Syndicate has also realised profits and losses on exchange

from transactions in the year, as well as having open currency positions at the year end. The

table below provides a breakdown of the profit and loss on exchange during the year.

2020
and Prior
Years of
Account

£000

2021
Year of

Account
£000

2022
Year of

Account
£000

Total
£000Profit and loss on exchange and currency translation.....................................................................................................................................................................

(Loss)/profit on currency translation of opening

balances and calendar year profits (386) 857 166 637

Profit on other transactions in the year 232 39 23 294

Other comprehensive income – currency

translation (343) (390) (80) (813)

(Loss)/profit on exchange and currency translation (497) 506 109 118

Investment Performance

2022
’000 %

2021
’000 %.....................................................................................................................................................................

Average Amount of Syndicate Funds £196,633 £157,756

Investment Return (excluding investment

manager’s fees) £359 0.18% £2 0.00%

By Currency:

Sterling:* Average Funds £12,725 £15,950

Investment Return (£207) (1.62%) (£202) (1.27%)

US Dollar: Average Funds US$206,451 US$177,668

Investment Return US$170 0.08% US$88 0.05%

Canadian Dollar: Average Funds Can$28,039 Can$22,464

Investment Return Can$448 1.60% Can$14 0.06%

*Includes investment manager’s fees of £150,134 (2021: £131,894).

Average amount of Syndicate Funds converted at average rates of exchange.
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10 Cincinnati Global Syndicate 318

Report of the directors of the managing agent
for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

Investment Policy

The Investment objective is to invest the

Premiums Trust Funds in a manner calculated

to maximise return within agreed restraints and

in line with policies approved by the Managing

Agency Board. In consideration of this policy,

portfolios are predominantly invested in

short-term, high quality fixed income securities.

The investment manager has been instructed

to achieve a return above the agreed

benchmark, whilst maintaining agreed levels of

liquidity and security. They also have discretion

to invest in private sector securities for a

limited proportion of the portfolio and within

diversity limits for individual credits. Limiting

the target duration of the overall portfolio

controls the exposure of the investments to

adverse interest rate movements. An

Investment Committee and formal procedures

for monitoring investments exist in line with the

guidance from Lloyd’s.

Review of Calendar Year 2022

2022 was a remarkable year for markets

broadly, with losses seen across most major

asset classes. Only the US dollar and some

commodities saw positive returns. The main

driver of markets was inflation, which started in

2021 due to post-covid supply shocks, with its

return exacerbated by the Russian invasion of

Ukraine which pushed energy prices higher.

Central banks tightened monetary policy sharply

to bring rates to more normalised levels and to

dampen the potential for second round effects

of inflation. The US economy was somewhat

insulated from the energy and growth concerns

felt in Europe which enabled the Fed to hike

more aggressively against rising inflation

expectations. Unemployment remained at

record lows, dropping to 3.5-3.6% for most of

the year, levels not seen since the 1960s.

Throughout the course of the year the Federal

Reserve raised rates an unprecedented 4.25%

including four back-to-back 75bps hikes at the

FOMC meetings between June and November.

This caused losses for bond markets, and a

sell-off in equity and credit markets as the

growth outlook diminished. Peak hawkishness

from the Fed was in early Q4 where yields

stabilised and enabled credit spreads to

rebound into year-end. Ominously, the Treasury

curve became increasingly inverted from July

with the difference between the 2 year and 10

year yields falling to -85bps in December. This

was the most inverted the curve has been in

over 40 years and a concerning omen for the

potential of recession in the near future. Over

the course of the year the 2 year Treasury yield

rose to 3.7%, the largest move in over 45 years.

Portfolios were positioned defensively with short

durations relative to benchmarks to provide

protection from rising yields. The short duration

position, which at the lows had been around half

the benchmark, was gradually reduced

throughout H2. Bond maturities were extended

to take advantage of higher yields leaving the

portfolios neutral to benchmark by year end.

Corporate bond holdings were close to portfolio

limits with activity focussed on optimising carry

within each rating and sector bucket. The

massive improvement in yields meant that

losses seen in Q1-Q3 were almost entirely

earned back in Q4. Portfolios showed greater

resilience than the benchmark losing less in the

negative quarters and achieving similar returns

in the rebound in Q4. Overall for the year,
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returns were a small negative and well above

the negatively returning benchmark.

Performance in the regulated CRTF and SLTF

accounts was above the LDTF portfolio due to

the better credit quality as spreads mostly

widened over the course of the year. The

portfolio remains concentrated in high quality

liquid issues to meet regular flows, both

between accounts and for claims and

reinsurance activity.

Outlook for 2023

Inflation and geopolitics will be the key themes

for the year. Base effects mean inflation will fall

sharply but we anticipate it will remain more

sticky than central banks would like and remain

above target for the year. Corporate

fundamentals are currently strong but we expect

them to deteriorate as consumers feel the effect

of higher rates, real income squeezes and a

slow growing economy. The main risk to the

outlook is geopolitics where if the

Russia-Ukraine war were to broaden then this

could cause a return to the energy crisis, growth

to collapse and create a recession. The

opposite is also possible where a ceasefire

could help reduce inflation through lower gas

prices, allowing confidence to return and push

the growth outlook higher. As a result, we

expect Treasury yields to remain high and credit

spreads to trade around long term averages.

With less central bank support to markets we

expect volatility to be elevated as markets trade

between the inflation and recession themes.

Overall, the improvement to portfolio yields

means returns are expected to be strong as any

further hikes from central banks are likely to be

limited and are currently compensated for by the

yields available.
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Report of the directors of the managing agent
for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

Business review – non-financial
In reviewing the performance of the business in the year, we have also assessed non-financial
metrics for underwriting, claims, human resources, and Solvency II. We have identified the following
criteria as important measures of performance for these areas. These are detailed in the table below.

Underwriting non-financial indicators
The Syndicate views the proportion of the business that it leads and renews as important
non-financial measurements of its performance. The amount of business that the Syndicate is the
lead underwriter on provides a useful measure of market position in relation to its peers. The level of
renewal business by the Syndicate is a good indicator of the continuity of the respective book of
business, as well as retention of clients. These are detailed for 2022 in the table below:

Property –
Direct and
Facultative

Property –
Binding

Authorities CPRI
Political
violence Specie

Contin-
gency CSUPR Consortia.....................................................................................................................................................................

Proportion of business written
where the Syndicate is the lead
underwriter 61% 38% 26% 5% 29% 54% 100% –

Proportion of business written
which is a renewal to the
Syndicate 82% 93% – 55% 62% 32% – –

The Board values experience in its underwriters. The table below details the experience of the
Syndicate’s senior underwriters in terms of the numbers of years they have worked at the Syndicate
and the number of years they have been active in the Lloyd’s market.

Name Position
Years at

Syndicate

Years in the
Insurance

Market.....................................................................................................................................................................
Nick Chalk Active Underwriter 23 27
Steve Anderson Head of Delegated Underwriting 14 34
Simon Pope Head of Property Underwriting – Direct and

Facultative 20 22
Francis Hernandez Head of Contingency 3 35
James Steele-Perkins Senior Underwriter – Credit & Political Risk 3 25
Ian Seakens Head of Specie 3 37
Tom Gardner Senior Underwriter – War, Terrorism and Political

Violence 3 10

Note – Years of service have been rounded up to the nearest full year.
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Claims handling non-financial indicators
As part of the evaluation of the Syndicate’s
claims handling performance, various
measurements are monitored on a quarterly
basis. Management view responding to claims
notifications, adjusting and settling them on a
timely basis as key to the Syndicate’s servicing
of claims. It also places great importance on the
accuracy of its case reserving within a
prescribed range. The table below illustrates
some of the KPIs used by the Board.

Claims Measurement
Average score

in 2022...............................................................................
Percentage of claims responded to

within target response time 94.2%

Percentage of claims meeting

internal reserving accuracy target 99.5%

Percentage of claims meeting

adjustment and settlement targets 99.3%

The overall performance against the agreed

targets has been very good in 2022, with

generally high average scores against the

metrics set.

Human resources non-financial indicators

The Board view retention of staff, and vocational

training as key to the long term success of the

Syndicate. The staff turnover for the Syndicate

has been historically low, and the average

length of service for employees tends to be

longer than market sector average. Cincinnati

Global Underwriting Agency Limited (CGUAL)

also remains committed to staff training, with a

number of employees studying for professional

qualifications in disciplines including

accountancy, actuarial, insurance and law.

The health, safety, and welfare of our

employees, and the people they have contact

with, is of paramount importance to us. The

People and Culture Working Group has been

set up to ensure the continual wellbeing of our

employees.

Principle Risks and Uncertainties

The Syndicate is exposed to a variety of risks

when undertaking the activities associated with

the running of the business. The Board has

policies and procedures in place to identify and

manage the risks to the Syndicate. The key

risks to the Syndicate are: Insurance risk,

Finance risk, Credit risk, Liquidity risk, Market

risk and Operational risk.

Climate change may adversely impact our

results of operations and/or our financial

position. Global climate change from rising

planet temperatures over the last several

decades has been linked to a number of factors

that contribute to the increased unpredictability,

frequency, duration and severity of weather

events, including: changing weather patterns, a

rise in ocean temperatures and sea level rise.

Further increases or persistence in these

conditions would lead to higher overall losses,

which we may not be able to recoup, particularly

in a highly regulated and competitive

environment, and higher reinsurance costs.

Certain catastrophe models assume an increase

in frequency and severity of certain weather or

other events, which could result in a

disproportionate impact on insurers with certain

geographic concentrations of risk. This would

also likely increase the risks of writing property

insurance in coastal areas or areas susceptible
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Report of the directors of the managing agent
for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

to wildfires or flooding, particularly in
jurisdictions that restrict pricing and underwriting
flexibility. The threat of rising seas or other
catastrophe losses as a result of global climate
change may also cause property values in
coastal or such other communities to decrease,
reducing the total amount of insurance coverage
that is required.

The board will continue to monitor the current
crisis in Ukraine and it’s potential implications
for the Syndicate.

Definitions of these risks and further explanation
on how they affect the Syndicate are detailed in
Note 4 on page 35.

Corporate Governance and Risk Management
Reporting to the Board are a number of
sub-committees each with written terms of
reference which consider, monitor and report on
aspects of the Managing Agency’s business.
The Board retains overall responsibility for the
Syndicate’s business.

The Managing Agency maintains a risk
framework for the identification, assessment,
management and monitoring of the risks to
which it is exposed across all aspects of its
day-to-day business operations, and it maintains
a risk register based on the output of this
framework. The risk framework encompasses all
core risk areas including insurance, credit,
investment, liquidity, market, concentration and
operational risk. Various controls operate in
respect of these risk areas, and their
performance and continued suitability are
monitored via the Risk Function and are
overseen by the relevant sub-committee, or the
board and through the use of key risk and
control indicators.

Audit and Risk Committee
The Audit Committee has the delegated
authority of the Board to consider all aspects and
matters pertaining to the internal and external
audit of the Managing Agency and the managed
Syndicate. This includes an assessment of the
performance, effectiveness and suitability of
these functions. All members of this committee
are independent non-executive directors.

Risk Committee
The Risk Committee has the delegated authority
of the Board to consider all aspects and matters
pertaining to the identification, assessment,
monitoring and mitigation of risk within the
Managing Agency and the managed Syndicate.
This includes an assessment of the
performance, effectiveness and suitability of the
risk management function and the risk
framework. The Risk Committee is responsible
for the consideration of operational risk issues
and maintains the Managing Agency’s risk
register. Economic, social and governance
issues are also reviewed by the Committee.

General Business Committee
The General Business Committee has the
delegated authority of the Board to consider
matters defined by the Board or any matters
that do not require consideration by the full
Board. In general, the committee considers the
more day-to-day administrative and operational
issues relating to the Managing Agency and the
managed Syndicate.

Investment Committee
The Investment Committee has the delegated
authority of the Board to recommend, monitor
and oversee the appropriateness of the
investment policy, investment guidelines and
performance measures for the managed
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Syndicate; for assessing the performance,
effectiveness and continued suitability of the
investment managers; and for ensuring
compliance with relevant rules and regulations.
The Investment Committee has specific
responsibility for the consideration of the market,
liquidity and concentration risk relating to the
investment of the managed Syndicate’s assets.

The Committee also assesses the suitability of
the portfolio from a prudent principle, and an
economic, social, and governance perspective.

Claims Committee
The Claims Committee has responsibility for
reviewing and monitoring all aspects of the
managed Syndicate’s claims performance and
claims service delivery.

Reserving Committee
The Reserving Committee assists the Board
in reviewing and approving the quarterly
reserves of the Syndicate for UK GAAP and
Solvency II.

Underwriting Committee
The Underwriting Committee has the delegated
authority of the Board to consider, monitor and
review all aspects of the underwriting strategy,
management and performance of the managed
Syndicate. This includes economic, social, and
governance considerations, particularly around
policies with exposure to fossil fuels. The
Underwriting Committee considers insurance
and reinsurance risks.

To assist it in fulfilling its obligations, the
Underwriting Committee has constituted a
sub-committee which addresses specific areas
of the managed Syndicate’s reinsurance
operations in more detail.

Reinsurance Operations Group
The Reinsurance Operations Group is a
sub-committee of the Underwriting Committee
and has responsibility for reviewing and
monitoring all aspects of the managed
Syndicate’s reinsurance operations and to
promote effective communication between the
underwriting, claims and reinsurance areas.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee has the
delegated authority of the Board to support and
assist the Agency in its objective to determine
and oversee the appropriateness of the policy
and framework which can attract and retain the
right talents. As such, the Remuneration
Committee oversees the determination of the
remuneration, benefits and bonus
arrangements of the senior executives and
officers of the Managing Agency and the
managed Syndicate, for the review and
approval of the general level of remuneration
and benefits for other staff and for ensuring
that remuneration arrangements are consistent
with principles of sound risk management and
corporate governance.

Product Oversight and Governance Committee
The Product Oversight and Governance (POG)
committee has the delegated authority of the
Board to provide guidance and critical
assessment of conduct risk issues thereby
ensuring compliance with Lloyd’s and the FCA’s
principles concerning conduct, and to assist the
Board in this regard. As such, the POG
supports the Board in establishing a positive
corporate culture in respect of Conduct Risk
which ensures that customers are treated fairly
at all times.
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Report of the directors of the managing agent
for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

People and Culture Working Group
The People and Culture Working Group reports
directly to the Board. Its goal is to promote the
development of our employees, and ensure
their continued wellbeing.

Future Developments
The Syndicate will continue explore
opportunities to expand the business in 2023.
The market is expected to remain well rated in
the coming 12 months, and because of this we
have increased the capacity of the Syndicate in
2023 to almost £300m. There are good
opportunities for growth across all our lines of
business, and we will also look to specific
expansion of our CSUPR platform, which was
launched successfully in February 2022, along
with further diversification through Consortia
arrangements.

Directors
The directors and officers of the Managing
Agent who held office up to the date of the
signing of the balance sheet were as follows:

Directors:
T.C. Cracas (non-executive)
D.C. Eales
A. Hoffmann (resigned 31 August 2022)
M.A. Langston
R.J. Martin (non-executive) (retired by

rotation 27 May 2022)
P.M. Murray (non-executive) (resigned 31

August 2022)
R.A. Pexton (non-executive chairman)
G.M. Tuck
G.A.M. Bonvarlet (non-executive) (appointed 1

June 2022)
R.B. Scott (non-executive) (appointed 31

August 2022)

Company secretary
S. Kaur (appointed 1 January 2022)
A. Hoffmann (resigned 1 January 2022)

Syndicate annual general meeting
The Managing Agent does not propose holding
an annual general meeting for the Syndicate.

Auditors
Deloitte LLP were appointed on the 31 July 2019.

Pursuant to Section 14(2) of Schedule 1 of the
Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s
Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts)
Regulations 2008, the auditor will be deemed
to be reappointed and Deloitte LLP will
therefore continue in office.

Statement as to disclosure of information to
auditors
The directors of the Managing Agent at the date
of this report have individually taken all the
necessary steps to make themselves aware, as
directors, of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Syndicate auditors are aware
of that information. As far as the directors are
aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the Syndicate auditors are unaware. The
directors are satisfied with the Syndicate’s ability
to continue being a going concern in the future.

G. M. Tuck
Chief Finance Officer

Cincinnati Global Underwriting Agency Limited
One Minster Court
London EC3R 7AA

Approved by the Board of Cincinnati Global
Underwriting Agency Limited on 22 February 2023
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Statement of managing agent’s responsibilities
for the year ended 31 December 2022

The directors of the managing agent are
responsible for preparing the Syndicate annual
accounts in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

The Insurance Accounts Directive Lloyd’s
Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts)
Regulations 2008 requires the directors of the
managing agent to prepare their Syndicates’
annual accounts for each financial year. Under
that law they have elected to prepare the annual
accounts in accordance with UK Accounting
Standards and applicable law (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS
102 The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.

Under the Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s
Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts)
Regulations 2008 the directors of the managing
agent must not approve the annual accounts
unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Syndicate and of the profit or loss of the
Syndicate for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the directors of the
managing agent are required to:

· Select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

·Make judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;

· State whether applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to
any material departures disclosed and
explained in the annual accounts;

· Assess the Syndicate’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and

·Use the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to cease trading, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the managing agent are
responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Syndicate’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Syndicate and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with
the Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s
Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations
2008. They are responsible for such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and have general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to
them to safeguard the assets of the company
and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

The directors of the managing agent are
responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the Syndicate and financial information included
on the Syndicate’s website. Legislation in the
UK governing the preparation and dissemination
of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

G. M. Tuck
Chief Finance Officer (on behalf of the board)

Cincinnati Global Underwriting Agency Limited
One Minster Court
London EC3R 7AA

Approved by the Board of Cincinnati Global
Underwriting Agency Limited on 22 February 2023
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Independent auditor’s report to the Members of Syndicate 318

Report on the audit of the syndicate annual
financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion the syndicate annual financial
statements of Syndicate 318 (the ‘syndicate’):

· give a true and fair view of the state of the
syndicate’s affairs as at 31 December 2022
and of its profit for the year then ended;

· have been properly prepared in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, including Financial
Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland, and

· have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of The Insurance Accounts
Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate
Accounts) Regulations 2008.

We have audited the syndicate annual financial
statements which comprise:

· Statement of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income;

· the balance sheet;

· the statement of changes in members’
balances;

· the statement of cash flows; and

· the related notes 1 to 23.

The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ”The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the

UK and Republic of Ireland“ (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in
the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
syndicate annual financial statements section of
our report.

We are independent of the syndicate in
accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the syndicate annual
financial statements in the UK, including the
Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s’)
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have
concluded that the managing agent’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we
have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
syndicate’s ability to continue in operations for a
period of at least twelve months from when the
syndicate financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of
the managing agent with respect to going
concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report.
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Other information
The other information comprises the information
included in the report and accounts (”annual
report“), other than the syndicate annual financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The
managing agent is responsible for the other
information contained within the annual report.
Our opinion on the syndicate annual financial
statements does not cover the other information
and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent
with the syndicate annual financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine
whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement themselves. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of managing agent
As explained more fully in the managing agent’s
responsibilities statement, the managing agent
is responsible for the preparation of the
syndicate annual financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the
managing agent determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of syndicate annual
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the syndicate annual financial
statements, the managing agent is responsible

for assessing the syndicate’s ability to continue
in operation, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to the syndicate’s ability to continue in
operation and to use the going concern basis of
accounting unless the managing agent intends
to cease the syndicate’s operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
syndicate annual financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the syndicate annual
financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these syndicate annual financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for
the audit of the syndicate annual financial
statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered
capable of detecting irregularities
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations. We
design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect
material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.
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Independent auditor’s report to the Members of Syndicate 318 continued

We considered the nature of the syndicate and
its control environment, and reviewed the
syndicate’s documentation of their policies and
procedures relating to fraud and compliance
with laws and regulations. We also enquired of
management, about their own identification and
assessment of the risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and
regulatory framework that the syndicate
operates in, and identified the key laws and
regulations that:

· had a direct effect on the determination of
material amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. These included the
Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s
Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts)
Regulations 2008 and the Lloyd’s Syndicate
Accounting Byelaw (no. 8 of 2005); and

· do not have a direct effect on the financial
statements but compliance with which may
be fundamental to the syndicate’s ability to
operate or to avoid a material penalty.
These included the requirements of
Solvency II.

We discussed among the audit engagement
team including relevant internal specialists such
as actuarial and IT regarding the opportunities
and incentives that may exist within the
organisation for fraud and how and where fraud
might occur in the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we
identified the greatest potential for fraud or
non-compliance with laws and regulations in the
following area, and our specific procedures
performed to address it are described below:

· Technical provisions are a key area of
management judgement with inherent
uncertainty and materiality. In particular
there is a high level of judgement required in
the projections of future claims on
catrostropic events hence for the syndicate

we have pinpointed the significant risk to the
assumptions used for the Incurred but not
reported (IBNR) in relation to catrostropic
events.

Our response to this risk was:

· Evaluated the design and implementation of
internal controls around the reserving cycle.
We have tested the controls over data,
model, assumptions, methodology and
results as per ISA 540R;

· Utilised our actuarial specialists to carry out
a benchmarking of the major catastrophe
events across our Lloyd’s and London
market and challenge the general
methodology and approach to assumptions
including initial expected loss ratio
benchmarking;

· Performed attribute testing on the data used
in the actuarial calculations. We have
selected a sample of items and trace
selections to underlying Syndicate records
to ensure the data is accurate and
complete;

· Performed a ‘stand back’ assessment to
consider all the evidence received from
audit procedures performed and concluded
if there is any evidence of overall
management bias.

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we
are also required to perform specific procedures
to respond to the risk of management override.
In addressing the risk of fraud through
management override of controls, we tested the
appropriateness of journal entries and other
adjustments; assessed whether the judgements
made in making accounting estimates are
indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the
business rationale of any significant transactions
that are unusual or outside the normal course of
business.
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In addition to the above, our procedures to
respond to the risks identified included the
following:

· reviewing financial statement disclosures by
testing to supporting documentation to
assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations described as
having a direct effect on the financial
statements;

· performing analytical procedures to identify
any unusual or unexpected relationships
that may indicate risks of material
misstatement due to fraud;

· enquiring of management concerning actual
and potential litigation and claims, and
instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations; and

· reading minutes of meetings of those
charged with governance, reviewing internal
audit reports and reviewing correspondence
with Lloyd’s, FCA and the PRA.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by The
Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate
and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in
the course of the audit:

· the information given in the Report of the
directors of the managing agent for the
financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with
the financial statements; and

·Report of the directors of the managing
agent has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding
of the syndicate and its environment obtained in

the course of the audit, we have not identified
any material misstatements in the Report of the
directors of the managing agent.

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception
Under The Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s
Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations
2008 we are required to report in respect of the
following matters if, in our opinion:

· the managing agent in respect of the
syndicate has not kept adequate accounting
records; or

· the syndicate annual financial statements
are not in agreement with the accounting
records; or

· we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these
matters.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the syndicate’s
members, as a body, in accordance with
regulation 10 of The Insurance Accounts
Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate
Accounts) Regulations 2008. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the
syndicate’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the syndicate’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Claire Clough ACA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom
27 February 2023
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Statement of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Technical account – general business

£000
2022

£000 £000
2021

£000Note.........................................................................................................................................................................
Earned premiums, net of reinsurance
Gross premiums written 5 250,390 179,206

Outward reinsurance premiums (41,241) (32,592)

Change in the provision for unearned premiums
Gross amount (21,851) (9,592)

Reinsurers’ share 687 2,949

17 187,985 139,971

Allocated investment return transferred from
the non-technical account 10 209 (130)

Other technical income, net of reinsurance – –

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance
Claims paid

Gross amount 5 (105,810) (98,924)

Reinsurers’ share 13,029 6,981

17 (92,781) (91,943)

Change in the provision for claims
Gross amount 5 (45,004) (3,122)

Reinsurers’ share 36,820 24,771

(8,184) 21,649

(100,965) (70,294)

Net operating expenses 7 (62,384) (46,381)

Balance on the technical account – for general
business 24,845 23,166

All items relate only to continuing operations.

The notes on pages 29 to 62 form part of these accounts.
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Non-technical account
2022
£000

2021
£000Note.........................................................................................................................................................................

Balance on the general business technical account 24,845 23,166

Investment income 10 3,196 1,499

Realised gains on investments 6 5

Realised losses on investments (1,360) (567)

Unrealised losses on investments (1,483) (935)

Investment expenses and charges (150) (132)

Allocated investment return transferred to general business technical
account 10 (209) 130

Profit/(loss) on foreign exchange 932 (175)

Profit for the financial year 25,777 22,991

Other comprehensive income – currency translation (813) 61

Total comprehensive income 24,964 23,052

The notes on pages 29 to 62 form part of these accounts.
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Balance sheet as at 31 December 2022

£000
2022

£000 £000
2021

£000Note.........................................................................................................................................................................
Assets
Investments
Other financial investments 11 215,551 157,162

Deposits with ceding undertakings 80 581

215,631 157,743

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions 17

Provision for unearned premiums 8,880 7,400

Claims outstanding 83,679 40,789

92,559 48,189

Debtors
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations 12 60,959 41,609

Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations 13 12,435 3,180

Other debtors 8,468 9,097

81,862 53,886

Other assets
Cash at bank and in hand 19 2,352 13,315

Prepayments and accrued income
Deferred acquisition costs 14 25,534 18,740

Other prepayments and accrued income 1,453 791

26,987 19,531

Total assets 419,391 292,664

The notes on pages 29 to 62 form part of these accounts.
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£000
2022

£000 £000
2021

£000Note.....................................................................................................................................................................
Liabilities
Capital and reserves
Members’ balances 11,245 (7,719)

Technical provisions 17

Provision for unearned premiums 109,956 79,402

Claims outstanding 268,965 200,588

378,921 279,990

Creditors
Creditors arising out of direct insurance
operations 18 1,320 535

Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 18 15,738 10,254

Other creditors including taxation and social
security 18 8,711 8,250

Accruals and deferred income 3,456 1,354

29,225 20,393

Total liabilities 419,391 292,664

The financial statements on pages 22 to 62 were approved by the Board of Cincinnati Global
Underwriting Agency Limited on 22 February 2023 and were signed on its behalf by

D. C. Eales
Chief Executive Officer

G. M. Tuck
Chief Finance Officer

27 February 2023

The notes on pages 29 to 62 form part of these accounts.
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Statement of changes in members’ balances
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022
£000

2021
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Members’ balances brought forward at 1 January (7,719) (46,015)

Profit for the year 25,777 22,991

Other comprehensive income – currency translation (813) 61

Members’ agents fees (108) (111)

Payments of (profits)/losses to and from members’ personal reserve fund (5,892) 15,355

Members’ balances carried forward at 31 December 11,245 (7,719)

Members participate on Syndicates by reference to years of account (YoA) and their ultimate result,
assets and liabilities are assessed with reference to policies incepting in that year of account in
respect of their membership of a particular year.

The notes on pages 29 to 62 form part of these accounts.
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022
£000

2021
£000Note.....................................................................................................................................................................

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year 25,777 22,991

Adjustments:

Net Unrealised gains on other financial instruments including foreign

exchange (17,625) (2,055)

Interest received (209) 130

Other comprehensive income – currency translation (813) 61

Movements in operating assets and liabilities:

Increase in reinsurers share of technical provisions (44,370) (28,587)

Increase in deferred acquisition costs (6,794) (2,806)

Increase in debtors, subrogation and salvage and prepayments (28,638) (7,632)

Increase in technical provisions 98,931 16,442

Increase/(decrease) in creditors 6,730 (1,049)

Increase in accruals and deferred income 2,102 1,343

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 35,091 (1,162)

Cash flows from investing activities

Net interest and dividends receivable 10 209 (130)

Acquisitions of other financial instruments (174,313) (128,982)

Proceeds from the sale of other financial instruments 134,050 120,701

Net cash (outflow) from investing activities (40,054) (8,411)

The notes on pages 29 to 62 form part of these accounts.
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28 Cincinnati Global Syndicate 318

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

£000
2022

£000 £000
2021

£000Note.....................................................................................................................................................................
Cash flow from financing activities:

Transfer to/from members in respect of

underwriting participations (5,892) 15,355

Members’ agents’ fees paid on behalf of members (108) (111)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing

activities (6,000) 15,244

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash

equivalents (10,963) 5,671

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 13,315 7,644

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 19 2,352 13,315

The notes on pages 29 to 62 form part of these accounts.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

1
(a) Basis of preparation
Syndicate 318 (“The Syndicate”) comprises a group of members of the Society of Lloyd’s that
underwrites insurance business in the London Market. The address of the Syndicate’s Managing
Agent is Cincinnati Global Underwriting Agency Limited, Third Floor, One Minster Court, Mincing
Lane, London, EC3R 7AA. Cincinnati Global Underwriting Agency Limited is registered in England
and Wales.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Insurance Accounts Directive
(Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008 and Financial Reporting Standard
102, The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (“FRS 102”),
and Financial Reporting Standard 103 Insurance Contracts (“FRS 103”).

The Syndicate has financial resources available, based on the latest cash flow forecasts, for a period
covering at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements, taking into
account its ability to call future losses from its capital providers to meet its liabilities as they fall due.
As a consequence, taking this into account together with the Syndicate’s ability to manage its
business risks in the current economic climate, that it remains appropriate for these financial
statements to have been prepared on a going concern basis.

(b) Going concern
The Board of CGUAL has a reasonable expectation that the Syndicate has adequate resources to
continue underwriting for the foreseeable future. The Board are satisfied that with the Syndicate’s
ability to continue being a going concern in the future.

2 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing these financial statements, the directors of the Managing Agent have made estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of the Syndicate’s accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.

Critical accounting judgements
There have been no critial accounting judgements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are considered to be claims liabilities
and unearned premium. Note 4 gives further sensitivity analysis into the impact of these risks.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

2 Use of judgments and estimates continued
Estimation of claims
The measurement of the provision for claims outstanding involves estimates and assumptions about
the future that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

The provision for claims outstanding comprises the estimated cost of settling all claims incurred but
unpaid at the balance sheet date, whether reported or not. This is a judgemental and complex area
due to the subjectivity inherent in estimating the impact of claims events that have occurred but for
which the eventual outcome remains uncertain. In particular, professional expertise is applied when
estimating the value of amounts that should be provided for claims that have been incurred at the
reporting date but have not yet been reported (IBNR) to the Syndicate.

The amount included in respect of IBNR is based on statistical techniques of estimation applied by
the Managing Agent’s in-house actuaries and reviewed by external consulting actuaries. These
techniques generally involve projecting from past experience the development of claims over time
given the likely ultimate claims to be experienced and for more recent underwriting, having regard to
variations in business accepted and the underlying terms and conditions. The provision for claims
also includes amounts in respect of internal and external claims handling costs. For the most recent
years, where a high degree of volatility arises from projections, estimates may be based in part on
output from rating, and other models of business accepted and assessments of underwriting
conditions.

In arriving at the level of claims provisions, a Board approved margin is applied over and above the
actuarial best estimate.

Further information about the risk that the provision for claims outstanding could be materially
different from the ultimate cost of claims settlement is included in note 4.

Estimation of premiums
The measurement of premiums written in the year involves estimates on the amounts of premiums
written but not signed to the Syndicate until after the balance sheet date.

The estimation of unearned premiums, includes estimates made on the allocation of premiums
between accounting periods based on judgements on the profile of the underlying risks associated
with the written, and accordingly how the premium is recognised as earned.

3 Accounting policies
The financial statements have been prepared on an annual basis of accounting, whereby the
incurred cost of claims, commission and related expenses are charged against the earned
proportion of premiums, net of reinsurance as follows:
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3 Accounting policies continued
(a) Premiums written
Premiums written comprise premiums on contracts which incepted during the financial year.
Premiums are shown gross of brokerage payable and exclude taxes and duties levied on them.
Estimates are made for pipeline premiums, representing amounts due to the Syndicate not yet
notified, as well as adjustments made in the year to premiums written in prior accounting periods.

(b) Unearned premiums
Written premium is earned according to the risk profile of the policy. Unearned premiums represent
the proportion of premiums written in the year that relate to unexpired terms of policies in force at
the balance sheet date, calculated on the basis of established earnings patterns or time
apportionment as appropriate. For certain policies, the earnings of premiums are accelerated or
delayed to reflect the seasonality of losses on the underlying exposures.

(c) Reinsurance premium ceded
Outwards reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same accounting period as the premiums
for the related direct or inwards business being reinsured.

(d) Claims Incurred
Claims incurred comprise claims and settlement expenses (both internal and external) paid in the year
and the movement in provision for outstanding claims and settlement expenses, including an allowance
for the cost of claims incurred by the balance sheet date but not reported until after the year end.

(e) Claims provisions and related recoveries
The provision for claims comprises amounts set aside for claims notified and claims incurred but not
yet reported (IBNR).

The amount included in respect of IBNR is based on statistical techniques and professional
expertise judgements applied by the Managing Agency’s management and reviewed by external
consulting actuaries. These techniques generally involve projecting from past experience of the
development of claims over time, to form a view of the likely ultimate claims to be experienced for
more recent underwriting, having regard to variations in the business accepted and the underlying
terms and conditions. The provision for claims also includes amounts in respect of internal and
external claims handling costs.

The reinsurers’ share of provisions for claims is based on calculated amounts of outstanding claims
and projections for IBNR, net of estimated irrecoverable amounts, having regard to the reinsurance
programme in place for the class of business, the claims experience for the year and the current
security rating of the reinsurance companies involved. The Syndicate uses a number of statistical
techniques to assist in making these estimates.

Accordingly, the most critical assumption in regards to claims provisions is that the past is a
reasonable predictor of the likely level of claims development. The estimation of IBNR is considered
to be a key area of uncertainty for the Syndicate.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

3 Accounting policies continued
(e) Claims provisions and related recoveries continued
It is considered that the provisions for gross claims and related reinsurance recoveries are fairly
stated on the basis of the information currently available. However, ultimate liability will vary as a
result of subsequent information and events, and this may result in significant adjustments to the
amounts provided. Adjustments to the amount of claims provisions established in prior years are
reflected in the financial statements for the period in which the adjustments are made. The methods
used, and the estimates made, are reviewed regularly.

(f) Unexpired risks provision
A provision for unexpired risks is made where claims, related expenses and deferred acquisition
costs, likely to arise after the end of the financial period in respect of contracts concluded before that
date, are expected to exceed the unearned premiums and premiums receivable under these
contracts, after the deduction of any acquisition costs deferred.

The provision for unexpired risks is calculated separately by reference to classes of business which
are written together, after taking into account relevant investment return.

(g) Acquisition costs
Acquisition costs, comprising commission and other costs related to the acquisition of new and
renewal insurance and reinsurance contracts, are deferred to the extent that they are attributable to
premiums unearned at the balance sheet date.

(h) Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the date of the transactions. The Syndicate’s monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the rates of exchange at the balance
sheet date. The Syndicate’s functional currency is US dollars. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at historic cost are translated to the functional
currency using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. For the purposes of foreign currency
translation, unearned premiums and deferred acquisition costs are treated as if they are monetary items.

Differences arising on translation of foreign currency amounts relating to insurance operations are
included in the non-technical account.

Syndicate assets and liabilities are translated into Sterling at the rates of exchange at the balance
sheet date. Differences arising on translation of functional currency amounts into Sterling
presentational currency are included in other comprehensive income.

(i) Financial assets and liabilities
In applying FRS 102, the Syndicate has chosen to apply the recognition and measurement provisions
of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (as adopted for use in the EU).
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

3 Accounting policies continued
(i) Financial assets and liabilities continued
Classification
The accounting classification of financial assets and liabilities determines how they are measured,
and changes in those values are presented in the statement of profit or loss. Financial assets and
liabilities are classified on their initial recognition. Subsequent reclassifications are permitted only in
restricted circumstances.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss comprise financial assets
and financial liabilities held for trading and those designated as such on initial recognition.
Investments in shares and other variable yield securities, units in unit trusts, and debt and other fixed
income securities are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition, as they
are managed on a fair value basis in accordance with the Syndicate’s investment strategy.

The Syndicate does not hold financial assets or financial liabilities for trading purposes, although
derivatives (assets or liabilities) held by the Syndicate are categorised as held for trading.

Deposits with credit institutions, debtors, and accrued interest are classified as loans and
receivables.

Recognition
Financial instruments are recognised when the Syndicate becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised if the Syndicate‘s contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or if the Syndicate transfers the financial asset to
another party without retaining control of substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. A financial
liability is derecognised when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled, or expire.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised, as applicable, on
the trade date, i.e. the date that the Syndicate commits itself to purchase or sell the asset.

Measurement
A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for a financial asset or
financial liability not at fair value through profit and loss, directly attributable transaction costs to its
acquisition or issue.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with fair value
changes recognised immediately in profit or loss. Net gains or net losses on financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss includes foreign exchange gains/losses arising on their
translation to the functional currency, but excludes interest and dividend income.

Identification and measurement of impairment
At each reporting date, the Syndicate assesses whether there is objective evidence that financial
assets not at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. Financial assets are impaired when
objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of an
asset, and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows on the asset that can be
estimated reliably.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

3 Accounting policies continued
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Syndicate about any significant financial difficulty of the issuer, or significant changes
in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the issuer operates.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The
remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk
characteristics.

An impairment loss recognised reduces the carrying amount of the impaired asset directly. All
impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Off-setting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Syndicate currently has a legal right to set off the amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

( j) Investment return
Investment return comprises investment income, realised investment gains and losses and
movements in unrealised gains and losses, net of investment expenses and charges. Investment
return arising in each calendar year on all the Syndicate’s investments is allocated to open years of
account in proportion to the average funds available for investment attributable to those years.
Investment returns in respect of overseas deposits are allocated to the year of account which funded
these deposits.

Realised gains and losses on investments carried at market value are calculated as the difference
between sale proceeds and purchase price. Movements in unrealised gains and losses on
investments represent the difference between the valuation at the balance sheet date, together with
the reversal of unrealised gains and losses recognised in earlier accounting periods in respect of
investment disposals in the current period.

Investment return is initially recorded in the non-technical account. A transfer is made from the
non-technical account to the general business technical account to reflect the investment return on
funds supporting underwriting business.

(k) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash balances held in current accounts at year end, and are
used by the Syndicate in the management of its short term commitments.

(l) Taxation
Under Schedule 19 of the Finance Act 1993, Managing Agents are not required to deduct basic rate
income tax from trading income. In addition, all UK basic rate income tax deducted from Syndicate
investment income is recoverable by Managing Agents, and consequently the distribution made to
members or their members’ agents is gross of tax. Capital appreciation falls within trading income
and is also distributed gross of tax.
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3 Accounting policies continued
(l) Taxation continued
No provision has been made for any United States Federal Income Tax payable on underwriting
results or investment earnings.

No provision has been made for any other overseas tax payable by members on underwriting
results.

(m) Pension costs
The intermediate parent company of the Managing Agent operates a defined contribution pension
scheme. Pension contributions relating to Syndicate staff are charged to the Syndicate and included
within net operating expenses.

(n) Operating lease rentals
Amounts recharged by the Managing Agent include costs arising from the use of assets in the
period. These rental costs are expensed in full in the period to which the charge relates.

(o) Net operating expenses
Where expenses are incurred by the Managing Agent or on behalf of the Managing Agent on the
administration of the Syndicate, the amounts in question are apportioned using varying methods
depending on the expense type. Expenses which are incurred jointly for the Managing Agent and
Syndicate are apportioned depending on the amount of work performed, resources used and the
volume of business transacted. Net operating expenses are allocated to the year of account for
which they are incurred.

4 Risk and capital management
Introduction and overview
This note presents information about the nature and extent of insurance and financial risks to which
the Syndicate is exposed, the Managing Agent’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing insurance and financial risks, and for managing the Syndicate’s capital.

Risk management framework
The Board of Directors of the Managing Agent has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Syndicate’s risk management framework. The Board has established a Risk
Committee to oversee the operation of the Syndicate’s risk management framework and to review
and monitor the management of the risks to which the Syndicate is exposed. The Risk Committee
has delegated oversight of the management of aspects of financial risks to the Investment
Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring financial risk management
policies. The Underwriting Committee monitors the Syndicate’s premium income, pricing, and
terms and conditions.

The Risk Committee, Underwriting Committee, Reserving Committee and the Investment Committee
report regularly to the Board of Directors on their activities.

The risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Syndicate, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

4 Risk and capital management continued

Insurance Risk

Management of insurance risk

A key component of the management of underwriting risk for the Syndicate is a disciplined

underwriting strategy that is focused on writing quality business and not writing for volume. Product

pricing is designed to incorporate appropriate premiums for each type of assumed risk. The

underwriting strategy includes underwriting limits on the Syndicate’s total exposure to specific risks

together with limits on geographical and industry exposures. The aim is to ensure a well diversified

book is maintained with no excessive exposure in any one geographical region.

Contracts can contain a number of features which help to manage the underwriting risk, such as the

use of deductibles, or capping the maximum permitted loss, or number of claims (subject to local

regulatory and legislative requirements).

The Syndicate makes use of reinsurance to mitigate the risk of incurring significant losses linked to

one event, including excess of loss and catastrophe reinsurance. Where an individual exposure is

deemed surplus to the Syndicate’s appetite, additional facultative reinsurance is also purchased. The

Syndicate also purchases quota share reinsurance at selected sub account levels.

The Reserving Committee oversees the management of reserving risk. The use of proprietary and

standardised modelling techniques, internal and external benchmarking, and the review of claims

development are all instrumental in mitigating reserving risk.

The Managing Agent’s in-house actuaries perform a reserving analysis on a quarterly basis liaising

closely with underwriters, claims and reinsurance technicians. This exercise aims to produce a

probability-weighted average of the expected future cash outflows arising from the settlement of

incurred claims. These projections include an analysis of claims development compared to the

previous ‘best estimate’ projections. The output of the reserving analysis is reviewed annually by

external consulting actuaries.

The Reserving Committee performs a comprehensive review of the projections, both gross and

net of reinsurance. Following this review, the Reserving Committee makes recommendations to

the Managing Agent’s Board of Directors of the claims provisions to be established.
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4 Risk and capital management continued
Concentration of insurance risk
The Syndicate’s exposure to insurance risk is fairly well diversified, although does have a
concentration in the US. The following table provides an analysis of the geographical breakdown of
its written premiums by class of business.

2022

Motor
£000

Marine,
aviation and

transport
£000

Fire and
other damage

to property
£000

Credit and
political risk

£000
Contingency

£000
Consortia

£000
Total
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

UK – – 2,966 360 4,831 – 8,157

Other Europe – 112 5,538 1,819 1,219 – 8,688

US 651 374 165,278 314 8,004 515 175,136

Canada – 46 10,158 – 128 – 10,332

Rest of World – 516 40,602 5,913 1,046 – 48,077

Total 651 1,048 224,542 8,406 15,228 515 250,390

2021

Motor
£000

Marine,
aviation and

transport
£000

Fire and
other damage

to property
£000

Credit and
political risk

£000
Contingency

£000
Total
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

UK – 977 1,415 271 3,788 6,451

Other Europe – 457 3,070 1,605 266 5,398

US 430 427 119,077 127 3,608 123,669

Canada – (156) 7,540 – 44 7,428

Rest of World – (450) 32,283 4,247 180 36,260

Total 430 1,255 163,385 6,250 7,886 179,206

Sensitivity to insurance risk
The liabilities established could be significantly lower or higher than the ultimate cost of settling the
claims arising or earning the premium. This level of uncertainty varies between the classes of
business and the nature of the risk being underwritten. For claims liabilities it can arise from
developments in case reserving for large losses and catastrophes, or from changes in estimates of
claims incurred but not reported (IBNR). A five per cent increase or decrease in the ultimate cost of
settling claims arising is considered to be not unreasonable at the reporting date.

For premium it can arise from market conditions, rates and capacity in the market. A five percent
increase or decrease in the ultimate premium is considered to be not unreasonable at the
reporting date.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

4 Risk and capital management continued
A five percent increase or decrease in total claims liabilities would have the following effect on profit
or loss and equity:

2022 2020
5 per cent

increase
£000

5 per cent
decrease

£000

5 per cent
increase

£000

5 per cent
decrease

£000.....................................................................................................................................................................
Marine, aviation and transport (244) 244 (305) 305

Fire and other damage to property (8,348) 8,348 (7,411) 7,411

Motor (11) 11 (7) 7

Credit and political risk (87) 87 (16) 16

Contingency (302) 302 (79) 79

Total (8,992) 8,992 (7,818) 7,818

A five percent increase or decrease in Unearned premium would have the following effect on profit
or loss and equity:

2022 2021
5 per cent

increase
£000

5 per cent
decrease

£000

5 per cent
increase

£000

5 per cent
decrease

£000.....................................................................................................................................................................
Marine, aviation and transport (65) 65 (45) 45

Fire and other damage to property (5,980) 5,980 (4,659) 4,659

Motor (other classes) (13) 13 (16) 16

Credit and political risk (352) 352 (272) 272

Contingency (560) 560 (341) 341

Consortia (22) 22 – –

Total (6,992) 6,992 (5,332) 5,332

Financial risk
The focus of financial risk management for the Syndicate is ensuring that the proceeds from its
financial assets are sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance contracts. The goal of
the investment management process is to optimise the risk-adjusted investment income and
risk-adjusted total return by investing in a diversified portfolio of securities, while ensuring that the
assets and liabilities are managed on a cash flow and duration basis.
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4 Risk and capital management continued
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Syndicate if a counterparty fails to discharge a
contractual obligation.

The Syndicate is exposed to credit risk in respect of the following:

· debt securities and derivative financial instruments;· reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities;· amounts due from intermediaries;· amounts due from reinsurers in respect of settled claims;· cash and cash equivalents; and· other debtors and accrued interest.

The nature of the Syndicate’s exposures to credit risk and its objectives, policies and processes for
managing credit risk have not changed significantly from the prior year.

Management of credit risk
The Syndicate’s credit risk in respect of debt securities is managed by placing limits on its exposure
to a single counterparty, by reference to the credit rating of the counterparty. Financial assets are
graded according to current credit ratings issued by rating agencies such as Standard and Poor’s.
The Syndicate has a policy of investing mainly in higher graded securities. The performance of these
investments are reviewed regularly by the investment committee.

The Syndicate limits the amount of cash and cash equivalents that can be deposited with a single
counterparty, and maintains an authorised list of acceptable cash counterparties.

The Syndicate’s exposure to intermediaries and reinsurance counterparties is monitored by the
individual business units as part of their credit control processes.

All intermediaries must meet minimum requirements established by the Syndicate. The credit ratings
and payment histories of intermediaries are monitored regularly.

The Syndicate assesses the creditworthiness of all reinsurers by reviewing public rating information
and by internal investigations. The impact of reinsurer default is regularly assessed and managed
accordingly.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

4 Risk and capital management continued
Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets and reinsurance assets represents the maximum credit risk
exposure. The Syndicate does not hold any collateral as security or purchase any credit
enhancements (such as guarantees, credit derivatives and netting arrangements that do not qualify
for offset).

The following table analyses the credit rating by investment grade of financial investments,
reinsurers’ share of technical provisions, debtors arising out of direct insurance and reinsurance
operations, cash at bank and in hand, and other debtors that are neither past due, nor impaired.

2022 AAA
£000

AA
£000

A
£000

BBB
£000

>BBB
£000

Not rated
£000

Total
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Financial investments
Debt securities 79,741 18,541 64,564 8,165 – – 171,011

Shares and other variable yield
securities and units in unit trusts 9,809 20,302 – – – 2,407 32,518

Deposits with credit institutions 80 – – – – – 80

Deposits with ceded undertakings 4,066 915 790 574 2,296 3,381 12,022

93,696 39,758 65,354 8,739 2,296 5,788 215,631

Reinsurers’ share of technical
provisions – 19,031 42,118 – (2) 22,532 83,679

Direct insurance debtors – – – – – 60,959 60,959

Debtors arising out of reinsurance
operations – 4,103 5,675 – 23 1,854 11,655

Other debtors – – – – – 8,468 8,468

Cash at bank and in hand – – 2,352 – – – 2,352

Total 93,696 62,892 115,499 8,739 2,317 99,601 382,744

The debtors arising from reinsurance operations excludes accepted reinsurance debtors of £0.8m.
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4 Risk and capital management continued
2021 AAA

£000
AA

£000
A

£000
BBB
£000

>BBB
£000

Not rated
£000

Total
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Financial investments
Debt securities 60,943 10,896 47,483 5,460 – – 124,782
Shares and other variable yield

securities and units in unit trusts 4,459 17,314 – – – 2,619 24,392
Deposits with credit institutions 2,907 502 1,337 478 720 2,044 7,988
Deposits with ceded undertakings 581 – – – – – 581

68,890 28,712 48,820 5,938 720 4,663 157,743

Reinsurers’ share of technical
provisions – 5,739 19,848 – 12 15,190 40,789

Direct insurance debtors – – – – – 41,609 41,609
Debtors arising out of reinsurance

operations – 1,141 1,279 – – 145 2,565
Other debtors – – – – – 9,097 9,097
Cash at bank and in hand – – 13,315 – – – 13,315

Total 68,890 35,592 83,262 5,938 732 70,704 265,118

The debtors arising from reinsurance operations excludes accepted reinsurance debtors of £0.6m.

Financial assets that are past due or impaired
The Syndicate has debtors arising from direct insurance and reinsurance operations that are past
due but not impaired at the reporting date. The Syndicate does not consider these debtors to be
impaired on the basis of stage of collection of amounts owed to the Syndicate.

An analysis of the carrying amounts of past due or impaired debtors is presented in the table below.

2022
Current

£000

0-3
months

£000

3-6
months

£000

6-12
months

£000

> 12
months

£000
Impaired

£000
Total
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Receivables from direct insurance 50,893 2,028 1,573 3,872 2,590 – 60,956
Reinsurer’ share of claims

outstanding 83,679 – – – – – 83,679
Receivables from reinsurance 11,655 – – – – – 11,655
Other debtors 8,468 – – – – – 8,468

The debtors arising from reinsurance operations excludes accepted reinsurance debtors of £0.8m.

2021
Current

£000

0-3
months

£000

3-6
months

£000

6-12
months

£000

> 12
months

£000
Impaired

£000
Total
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Receivables from direct insurance 38,317 489 612 743 1,448 – 41,609
Reinsurer’ share of claims

outstanding 40,789 – – – – – 40,789
Receivables from reinsurance 2,565 – – – – – 2,565
Other debtors 9,097 – – – – – 9,097

The debtors arising from reinsurance operations excludes accepted reinsurance debtors of £0.6m.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

4 Risk and capital management continued
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Syndicate will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from
its insurance contracts and financial liabilities. The Syndicate is exposed to daily calls on its available
cash resources mainly from claims arising from insurance contracts.

The nature of the Syndicate’s exposures to liquidity risk and its objectives, policies and processes for
managing liquidity risk have not changed significantly from the prior year.

Management of liquidity risk
The Syndicate’s approach to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Syndicate’s reputation.

The Syndicate’s approach to managing its liquidity risk is as follows:

· Forecasts are prepared and revised regularly to predict cash outflows from insurance contracts
over the short, medium and long term;· The Syndicate purchases assets with durations not greater than its estimated insurance contract
outflows;· Assets purchased by the Syndicate are required to satisfy specified marketability requirements;· The Syndicate maintains cash and liquid assets to meet daily calls on its insurance contracts;· The Syndicate holds significant committed borrowing facilities from a range of highly rated banks
to enable cash to be raised in a relatively short time-span; and· The Syndicate regularly updates its contingency funding plans to ensure that adequate liquid
financial resources are in place to meet obligations as they fall due in the event of reasonably
foreseeable abnormal circumstances.
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4 Risk and capital management continued
The maturity analysis presented in the table below shows the remaining contractual maturities for
the Syndicate’s insurance contracts and financial instruments. For insurance contracts, the
contractual maturity date is the estimated date when the gross undiscounted contractually required
cash flows will occur. For financial assets and liabilities, it is the earliest date on which the gross
undiscounted cash flows (including contractual interest payments) could be paid assuming
conditions are consistent with those at the reporting date.

2022 Undiscounted net cash flows
Carrying
amount

£000

Total cash
flows
£000

Less than
1 year

£000
1-2 years

£000
2-5 years

£000

More than
5 years

£000.....................................................................................................................................................................
Financial investments:
Shares and other variable yield securities

and units in unit trusts 32,518 32,518 32,518 – – –

Debt securities 171,011 176,910 100,885 68,265 7,760 –

Deposits with credit institutions 12,022 12,022 12,022 – – –

Reinsurers share of technical provisions 92,559 92,559 30,422 47,886 12,276 1,975

Debtors 81,862 81,862 81,862 – – –

Cash at bank and in hand 2,352 2,352 2,352 – – –

Deposits with ceded undertakings 80 80 80 – – –

Total assets 392,404 398,303 260,141 116,151 20,036 1,975

Technical provisions 378,921 378,921 115,536 199,922 48,358 15,105

Creditors 25,769 25,769 25,769 – – –

Total liabilities 404,690 404,690 141,305 199,922 48,358 15,105
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

4 Risk and capital management continued
2021 Undiscounted net cash flows

Carrying
amount

£000

Total cash
flows
£000

Less than
1 year

£000
1-2 years

£000
2-5 years

£000

More than
5 years

£000.....................................................................................................................................................................
Financial investments:
Shares and other variable yield securities

and units in unit trusts 24,392 24,392 24,392 – – –

Debt securities 124,782 120,552 46,275 50,488 23,789 –

Deposits with credit institutions 7,988 7,988 7,988 – – –

Reinsurers share of technical provisions 48,189 40,789 14,592 20,436 4,881 880

Debtors 53,886 53,886 53,886 – – –

Cash at bank and in hand 13,315 13,315 13,315 – – –

Deposits with ceded undertakings 581 581 581 – – –

Total assets 273,133 261,503 161,029 70,924 28,670 880

Technical provisions 279,990 279,990 88,152 145,005 35,759 11,073

Creditors 19,039 19,039 19,039 – – –

Total liabilities 299,029 299,029 107,191 145,005 35,759 11,073

Total cash flows detailed in the tables above for investments are the sum of all future interest
receipts and repayment of principal at maturity of the underlying securities. The carrying amount is
the current market value for the securities and includes accrued interest at the balance sheet date.

Cash can be realised through the sale of the Syndicate’s investments in debt securities, the majority
of which are actively traded. The disclosure does not take account of premiums received from new
business written which can be used to pay claims arising.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument or insurance
contract will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of
risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk. The nature of the Syndicate exposures to
market risk and its objectives, policies and processes for managing market risk have not changed
significantly from the prior year.

Management of market risks
For each of the major components of market risk, the Syndicate has policies and procedures in
place which detail how each risk should be managed and monitored. The management of each of
these major components of market risk and the exposure of the Syndicate at the reporting date to
each major risk is addressed as follows:
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4 Risk and capital management continued
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises primarily from the Syndicate’s financial investments, cash and overseas
deposits. The risk of changes in the fair value of these assets is managed by primarily investing in
short-duration financial investments and cash and cash equivalents. The Investment Committee
monitors the duration of these assets on a regular basis.

Currency risk
The Syndicate writes business primarily in Sterling, US dollar and Canadian dollar and is therefore
exposed to currency risk arising from fluctuations in the exchange rates of Sterling against these
currencies.

The foreign exchange policy is to maintain assets in the currency in which the cash flows from
liabilities are to be settled in order to hedge the currency risk inherent in these contracts. In addition,
the Syndicate will from time to time enter into currency forward contracts which materially hedge the
long position on US dollars. At 31 December 2022, there were no forward contracts in place
(31 December 2021 £Nil).

The table below summarises the carrying value of the Syndicate’s assets and liabilities, at the
reporting date.

2022
Sterling

£000
US dollar

£000

Canadian
dollar
£000

Other
£000

Total
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Financial investments
Shares and other variable yield

securities and units in unit trusts 2,407 14,891 15,220 – 32,518

Debt securities and other fixed
income securities – 171,011 – – 171,011

Deposits with credit institutions – 1,707 2,075 8,240 12,022

Deposits with ceded undertakings 76 4 – – 80

2,483 187,613 17,295 8,240 215,631

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions 4,947 87,556 56 – 92,559

Debtors 9,513 68,260 4,089 – 81,862

Other assets 2,352 – – – 2,352

Prepayments and accrued income 7,316 18,665 1,006 – 26,987

Total assets 26,611 362,094 22,446 8,240 419,391

Technical provisions 40,908 324,142 13,871 – 378,921

Creditors 9,398 16,295 76 – 25,769

Accruals and deferred income 3,456 – – – 3,456

Total liabilities 53,762 340,437 13,947 – 408,146

Net assets (27,151) 21,657 8,499 8,240 11,245
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

4 Risk and capital management continued

2021
Sterling

£000
US dollar

£000

Canadian
dollar
£000

Other
£000

Total
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Financial investments
Shares and other variable yield

securities and units in unit trusts 2,619 8,982 12,791 – 24,392

Debt securities and other fixed
income securities – 124,782 – – 124,782

Deposits with credit institutions – 1,619 1,516 4,853 7,988

Deposits with ceded undertakings 574 7 – – 581

3,193 135,390 14,307 4,853 157,743

Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions 2,623 45,393 173 – 48,189

Debtors 6,457 43,859 3,570 – 53,886

Other assets 13,315 – – – 13,315

Prepayments and accrued income 5,448 13,192 891 – 19,531

Total assets 31,036 237,834 18,941 4,853 292,664

Technical provisions 29,710 234,835 15,445 – 279,990

Creditors 9,966 8,951 122 – 19,039

Accruals and deferred income 1,354 – – – 1,354

Total liabilities 41,030 243,786 15,567 – 300,383

Net assets (9,994) (5,952) 3,374 4,853 (7,719)

Equity price risk
The Syndicate does not hold any equities which are subject to equity price risk.

Sensitivity analysis to market risks for financial instruments
An analysis of the Syndicate’s sensitivity to interest rate, currency and other price risk is presented in
the table overleaf. The table shows the effect on profit or loss of reasonably possible changes in the
relevant risk variable, assuming that all other variables remain constant, if that change had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to the risk exposures at that date.
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4 Risk and capital management continued
2022 2021

Profit or loss
for the year

£000

Profit or loss
for the year

£000.....................................................................................................................................................................
Interest rate risk
+ 50 basis points shift in yield curves (1,006) (657)

– 50 basis points shift in yield curves 1,006 657

Currency risk
10 percent increase in GBP/US dollar exchange rate (2,166) 595

10 percent decrease in GBP/US dollar exchange rate 2,166 (595)

The impact of the reasonably possible changes in the risk variables on Members’ balances would be
the same, since the Syndicate recognises all changes in recognised assets and liabilities in profit or
loss.

A 10% increase (or decrease) in exchange rates and a 50 basis point increase (or decrease) in yield
curves have been selected, on the basis that these are not considered to be unreasonable changes
in the risk variables over the following year.

The sensitivity analysis demonstrates the effect of a change in a key variable while other
assumptions remain unchanged. However, the occurrence of a change in a single market factor may
lead to changes in other market factors as a result of correlations.

The sensitivity analysis does not take into consideration that the Syndicate’s financial investments
are actively managed. Additionally, the sensitivity analysis is based on the Syndicate’s financial
position at the reporting date and may vary at the time that any actual market movement occurs. As
investment markets move past pre-determined trigger points, action would be taken which would
alter the Syndicate’s position.

Whilst the actual currency movements in the year have been in excess of the thresholds above, we
still consider a 10% currency risk variable to be reasonable in a normal year.

Capital management
Capital framework at Lloyd’s
The Society of Lloyd’s (Lloyd’s) is a regulated undertaking and subject to supervision by the
Prudential Regulatory Authority (PRA) under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, and in
accordance with the Solvency II Framework.

Within this supervisory framework, Lloyd’s applies capital requirements at member level and
centrally to ensure that Lloyd’s would comply with the Solvency II requirements, and beyond that to
meet its financial strength, licence and ratings objectives.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

4 Risk and capital management continued
Although, as described below, Lloyd’s capital setting processes use capital obligations set at
Syndicate level as a starting point, the requirement to meet Solvency II and Lloyd’s capital
requirements apply only at overall and member level respectively, not at Syndicate level.
Accordingly, the capital requirement in respect of Syndicate 318 is not disclosed in these financial
statements.

Lloyd’s capital setting process
In order to meet Lloyd’s requirements, each Syndicate is required to calculate its Solvency Capital
Requirement (SCR) for the prospective underwriting year. This amount must be sufficient to cover a
1 in 200 year loss, reflecting uncertainty in the ultimate run-off of underwriting liabilities (SCR ‘to
ultimate’). The Syndicate must also calculate its SCR at the same confidence level but reflecting
uncertainty over a one year time horizon (one year SCR) for Lloyd’s to use in meeting Solvency II
requirements. The SCRs of each Syndicate are subject to review by Lloyd’s and approval by the
Lloyd’s Capital and Planning Group.

A Syndicate comprises one or more underwriting members of Lloyd’s. Each member is liable for its
share of underwriting liabilities on the Syndicates on which it is participating but not other members’
shares. Accordingly, the capital requirements that Lloyd’s sets for each member operate on a similar
basis. Each member’s SCR shall thus be determined by the sum of the member’s share of the
Syndicate’s SCR ‘to ultimate’. Where a member participates on more than one Syndicate, a credit
for diversification is provided to reflect the spread of risk, but consistent with determining an SCR
which reflects the capital requirement to cover a 1 in 200 loss ‘to ultimate’ for that member. Over and
above this, Lloyd’s applies a capital uplift to the member’s capital requirement, known as the
Economic Capital Assessment (ECA). The purpose of this uplift, which is a Lloyd’s and not a
Solvency II requirement, is to meet Lloyd’s financial strength, licence and ratings objectives. The
capital uplift applied for 2023 was maintained at 35% of the member’s SCR ‘to ultimate’.

Provision of capital by members
Each member may provide capital to meet its ECA either by assets held in trust by Lloyd’s
specifically for that member (funds at Lloyd’s), assets held and managed within a Syndicate (funds
in Syndicate), or as the member’s share of the members’ balances on each Syndicate on which it
participates.

Accordingly, all of the assets less liabilities of the Syndicate, as represented in the members’
balances reported on the balance sheet on page 25, represent resources available to meet
members’ and Lloyd’s capital requirements.
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5 Analysis of underwriting result
An analysis of the underwriting result before investment return is set out below:

2022 Gross
premiums

written
£000

Gross
premiums

earned
£000

Gross
claims

incurred
£000

Net
operating
expenses*

£000

Reinsurance
balance

£000
Total
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Direct insurance:
Motor (other classes) 1,164 800 (409) (369) 39 61

Marine aviation and transport 514 337 (30) (597) (229) (519)

Fire and other damage to property 161,553 152,908 (127,025) (37,298) 13,969 2,554

Credit and political risk 8,407 5,219 (1,529) (7,085) (1,021) (4,416)

Contingency 15,228 12,456 (7,362) (4,895) (3,306) (3,107)

186,866 171,720 (136,355) (50,244) 9,452 (5,427)

Reinsurance acceptances 63,524 56,819 (14,459) (12,140) (157) 30,063

Total 250,390 228,539 (150,814) (62,384) 9,295 24,636

*Includes commissions on direct business of (£37,112,108).

2021 Gross
premiums

written
£000

Gross
premiums

earned
£000

Gross
claims

incurred
£000

Net
operating
expenses*

£000

Reinsurance
balance

£000
Total
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Direct insurance:
Motor (other classes) 430 474 (260) (142) (6) 66

Marine aviation and transport 1,526 1,102 (334) (597) (478) (307)

Fire and other damage to property 117,831 116,774 (75,825) (28,550) 8,626 21,025

Credit and political risk 6,252 3,138 519 (4,616) (466) (1,425)

Contingency 7,885 4,142 (2,479) (1,467) (1,144) (948)

133,924 125,630 (78,379) (35,372) 6,532 18,411

Reinsurance acceptances 45,282 43,984 (23,667) (11,009) (4,423) 4,885

Total 179,206 169,614 (102,046) (46,381) 2,109 23,296

*Includes commissions on direct business of (£24,335,627).

All premiums were written in the UK. All net assets and profits are derived from UK business.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

5 Analysis of underwriting result continued
Geographical analysis by risk location

2022
Gross

premiums
written

£000

2021
Gross

premiums
written

£000.....................................................................................................................................................................
UK 16,798 10,303

US 170,045 123,965

Other 63,547 44,938

Total 250,390 179,206

6 Claims
Favourable movements of £14.2m, (2021: £30.4m), in the past year’s provision for claims
outstanding and IBNR, net of expected reinsurance recoveries, are included in claims incurred, net
of reinsurance.

7 Net operating expenses
2022
£000

2021
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Acquisition costs:
Brokerage and commissions 49,415 33,491

Other acquisition costs 8,921 8,694

58,336 42,185

Change in deferred acquisition costs (5,057) (2,597)

Administrative expenses 2,486 2,208

Members’ standard personal expenses 6,619 4,585

Net operating expenses 62,384 46,381

Administrative expenses include:
2022
£000

2021
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Auditors’ remuneration:
– fees payable to the Syndicate auditor for the audit of the Syndicate

annual accounts 238 196

– audit related assurance services 90 82

– fees payable to the Syndicate auditor for the audit of the managing agent 25 20

353 298
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8 Key management personnel compensation
The directors of Cincinnati Global Underwriting Agency Limited received the following aggregate
remuneration charged to the Syndicate and included within net operating expenses:

2022
£000

2021
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Directors’ emoluments 815 858

Pension contributions 17 12

832 870

The active underwriter received the following aggregate remuneration charged to the Syndicate and
is not included within directors’ emoluments above. Pension contributions detailed above are in
respect of four directors of CGUAL.

2022
£000

2021
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Emoluments 375 351

Pension contributions – 4

375 355

9 Staff numbers and costs
All staff are employed by the intermediate parent company of the Managing Agency. The following
amounts were recharged to the Syndicate in respect of salary costs:

2022
£000

2021
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Wages and salaries 7,826 6,953

Social security costs 1,389 900

Other pension costs 610 555

9,825 8,408

The average number of employees employed by the intermediate parent company of the Managing
Agency but working for the Syndicate during the year was as follows:

2022
No

2021
No.....................................................................................................................................................................

Administration and finance 25 25

Underwriting 23 21

Claims 10 10

58 56
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

10 Investment return
The investment return transferred from the non-technical account to the technical account comprises
the following:

2022
£000

2021
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Investment income:
Interest and dividend income 3,196 1,499

Realised gains 6 5

Unrealised gains on investments – –

Investment expenses and charges:
Investment management expenses (150) (132)

Losses on the realisation of investments (1,360) (567)

Unrealised losses on investments (1,483) (935)

Total investment return 209 (130)

The total income, expenses, net gains or losses, including changes in fair value, recognised on all
financial assets and financial liabilities comprises the following:

2022
£000

2021
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 359 2

Investment management expenses, excluding interest (150) (132)

Total investment return 209 (130)

The table below presents the average amounts of funds in the year per currency and analyses by
major currency the average investment yields in the year.

2022
£000

2021
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Average amount of Syndicate funds available for investment during the
year

Sterling 12,725 15,951

US dollar 166,493 128,745

Canadian dollar 17,415 13,060

Total funds available for investment, in sterling 196,633 157,756

Total investment return 209 (130)

Annual investment yield
Sterling (1.62%) (1.27%)

US dollar 0.08% 0.05%

Canadian dollar 1.60% 0.06%

Total annual investment yield, in sterling 0.18% 0.00%
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11 Financial investments
Carrying value Cost

2022
£000

2021
£000

2022
£000

2021
£000...................................................................................................................................................................

Shares and other variable yield securities and
units in unit trusts 32,518 24,392 32,518 24,392

Debt securities and other fixed income securities 171,011 124,782 172,386 125,208

Government and supranational securities 76,879 59,130 76,888 59,329

Asset backed securities – – – –

Mortgage backed instruments 535 656 546 655

Corporate bonds 93,597 64,996 94,952 65,224

Deposits with credit institutions 12,022 7,988 12,022 7,988

Total financial investments 215,551 157,162 216,926 157,586

The amount ascribable to listed investments is £171.0m (2021: £124.8m). All financial assets are
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Syndicate classifies its financial instruments held at fair value in its balance sheet using a fair
value hierarchy, as follows:

· Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities· Level 2 – Prices based on recent transactions in identical assets (either unadjusted or adjusted)· Level 3 – Prices determined using a valuation technique. These are loans provided by Syndicate
318 to the Central Fund at Lloyd’s in respect of the 2021 and 2022 underwriting years. These
instruments are not tradeable and are valued using discounted cash flow models, designed to
appropriately reflect the credit and illiquidity risk of the instruments. The Syndicate loans have
been classified as Level 3 investments because the valuation approach includes significant
unobservable inputs and an element of subjectivity in determining appropriate credit and
illiquidity spreads within the discount rates used in the discounted cash flow model. There is no
market in which the instruments can be traded.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

11 Financial investments continued

2022 Level 1
£000

Level 2
£000

Level 3
£000

Total
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Shares and other variable yield securities and
units in unit trusts 6,616 23,495 2,407 32,518

Debt securities and other fixed income securities 48,923 122,088 – 171,011

Deposits with credit institutions 2,929 9,093 – 12,022

Total 58,468 154,676 2,407 215,551

2021 Level 1
£000

Level 2
£000

Level 3
£000

Total
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Shares and other variable yield securities and
units in unit trusts 3,922 17,851 2,619 24,392

Debt securities and other fixed income securities 39,819 84,963 – 124,782

Deposits with credit institutions 2,108 5,880 – 7,988

Total 45,849 108,694 2,619 157,162

Information on the methods and assumptions used to determine fair values for each major category
of financial instrument measured at fair value is provided below.

Shares and other variable securities and units in unit trusts are generally categorised as level 2 in
the fair value hierarchy as generally they are actively traded and measured on prices of recent
transactions in the same instrument. The syndicate has no exposure to hedge funds.

Debt securities and derivative financial assets are generally valued using prices provided by external
pricing vendors. Pricing vendors will often determine prices by consolidating prices of recent trades
for identical or similar securities obtained from a panel of market makers into a composite price. The
pricing service may make adjustments for the elapsed time from trade date to the valuation date to
take into account available market information. Lacking recently reported trades, pricing vendors will
use modelling techniques to determine a security price.

Some government and supranational securities are listed on recognised exchanges and are
generally classified as level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. Those that are not listed on a recognised
exchange are generally based on composite prices of recent trades in the same instrument and are
generally classified as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Corporate bonds, including asset backed securities, that are not listed on a recognised exchange or
are traded in an established over-the-counter market are also mainly valued using composite prices.
Where prices are based on multiple quotes and those quotes are based on actual recent
transactions in the same instrument the securities are classified as level 2, otherwise they are
classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.
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11 Financial investments continued
Level 3 comprises Syndicate Loans provided by the Syndicate to the Central Fund at Lloyd’s in
respect of the 2019 and 2020 underwriting years. These instruments are not tradeable and are
valued using discounted cash flow models, designed to appropriately reflect the credit and illiquidity
risk of the instruments.

The movement in the fair value of level 3 assets of (£0.1m) is entirely due to the change in the
internal valuation of the Syndicate loans, with the movement being recognised through profit and
loss. There were no purchases, sales, issues, settlements or transfers into or out of the Syndicate
loans during the year.

12 Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations
2022
£000

2021
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Amounts due from intermediaries:
Due within one year 60,959 41,609

60,959 41,609

13 Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations
2022
£000

2021
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Amounts due within one year 12,435 3,180

12,435 3,180

14 Deferred acquisition costs
The table below shows changes in deferred acquisition costs assets from the beginning of the period
to the end of the period.

2022
£000

2021
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Balance at 1 January 18,740 15,934

Incurred costs deferred 24,974 18,459

Amortisation (19,917) (15,862)

Effect of movements in exchange rates 1,737 209

Balance at 31 December 25,534 18,740
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

15 Year of account development

Year of Account
2017
£000

2018
£000

2019
£000

2020
£000

2021
£000

2022
£000

Profit/(loss)
before

members’
agents fees

£000.....................................................................................................................................................................
2017 (62,335) (30,649) 11,007 (81,977)

2018 (43,635) 10,234 18,184 (15,217)

2019 2,852 (17,555) 20,725 6,022

2020 (15,706) 10,886 7,452 2,632

2021 (8,559) 20,004

2022 (2,492)

Calendar year result 24,093 (15,077) 23,052 24,964

A payment of US$3.0m to members will be paid in relation to the 2020 year of account (2021:
US$7.95m in relation to the 2019 year of account).
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16 Claims development

Claims development on cumulative premium earned is shown in the tables below, both gross and

net of reinsurance ceded, on an underwriting year basis. Balances have been translated at

exchange rates prevailing at 31 December 2022 in all cases.

Pure underwriting year
2013

£m
2014

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2017

£m
2018

£m
2019

£m
2020

£m
2021

£m
2022

£m
Total

£m.....................................................................................................................................................................
Estimate of ultimate gross

claims at end of

underwriting year 58.6 57.4 49.6 73.2 200.1 106.3 44.9 75.1 74.2 101.4

one year later 91.6 97.5 93.1 161.1 288.5 163.1 122.1 142.6 128.9

two years later 81.0 88.5 87.8 156.4 289.8 157.0 112.9 144.7

three years later 78.3 83.4 82.8 154.8 285.4 153.4 112.3

four years later 77.5 81.8 82.6 154.8 279.3 151.6

five years later 76.6 80.6 80.8 154.1 278.4

six years later 75.8 79.6 80.0 155.5

seven years later 75.3 79.1 79.4

eight years later 74.0 78.7

nine years later 73.7

Less gross claims paid 72.9 76.2 78.0 148.5 269.6 138.8 90.5 102.6 49.5 17.8

Gross ultimate claims

reserve 0.8 2.4 1.4 7.0 8.8 12.7 21.8 42.1 79.4 83.7 260.1

Gross ultimate claims

reserve for 2010 and

prior years 8.9

Gross claims reserves 269



SC0

SC1

C

M

Y

CM

MY

CY

CMY

✓ G:\Jobs\16001-16200\16067\Artwork\1.WIN
27/2/2023 10:14:41 Galley 60 All together

58 Cincinnati Global Syndicate 318

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

16 Claims development continued

Pure underwriting year
2013

£m
2014

£m
2015

£m
2016

£m
2017

£m
2018

£m
2019

£m
2020

£m
2021

£m
2022

£m
Total

£m.....................................................................................................................................................................
Estimate of ultimate net

claims at end of

underwriting year 56.3 55.0 48.8 71.9 116.3 100.2 43.7 72.3 61.8 72.6

one year later 87.8 95.5 89.7 143.1 197.4 148.4 116.1 114.4 100.1

two years later 77.1 86.4 84.3 137.0 195.0 140.7 105.9 113.2

three years later 74.5 81.3 80.1 135.2 189.4 139.4 104.0

four years later 73.5 79.8 79.7 135.1 182.5 136.4

five years later 72.6 78.5 78.4 134.4 181.4

six years later 71.7 77.5 77.8 135.6

seven years later 71.2 77.0 77.2

eight years later 70.3 76.6

nine years later 70.1

Less net claims paid 69.3 74.2 75.7 128.7 173.7 129.5 84.9 94.3 45.0 17.5

Net ultimate claims reserve 0.8 2.4 1.4 6.9 7.8 10.5 19.1 18.9 55.1 55.2 178.1

Net ultimate claims reserve

for 2010 and prior years 7.2

Net claims reserves 185.3
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17 Technical provisions
The table below shows changes in the insurance contract liabilities and assets from the beginning of
the period to the end of the period.

2022 2021
Gross

provisions
£000

Reinsurance
assets

£000
Net

£000

Gross
provisions

£000

Reinsurance
assets

£000
Net

£000.....................................................................................................................................................................
Incurred claims outstanding:
Claims notified 122,947 (26,416) 96,531 119,268 (12,288) 106,980

Claims incurred but not reported 77,641 (14,373) 63,268 75,524 (2,970) 72,554

Balance at 1 January 200,588 (40,789) 159,799 194,792 (15,258) 179,534

Change in prior year provisions (79,119) 3,063 (76,056) (91,981) 3,993 (87,988)

Expected cost of current year claims 229,934 (52,912) 177,020 194,028 (35,746) 158,282

Claims paid during the year (105,810) 13,029 (92,781) (98,924) 6,981 (91,943)

Effect of movements in exchange rates 23,372 (6,070) 17,302 2,673 (759) 1,914

Balance at 31 December 268,965 (83,679) 185,286 200,588 (40,789) 159,799

Claims notified 150,108 (39,451) 110,657 122,947 (26,416) 96,531

Claims incurred but not reported 118,857 (44,228) 74,629 77,641 (14,373) 63,268

Balance at 31 December 268,965 (83,679) 185,286 200,588 (40,789) 159,799

Unearned premiums
Balance at 1 January 79,402 (7,400) 72,002 68,756 (4,344) 64,412

Premiums written during the year 250,390 (41,241) 209,149 179,206 (32,592) 146,614

Premiums earned during the year (228,539) 40,554 (187,985) (169,614) 29,643 (139,971)

Effect of movements in exchange rate 8,703 (793) 7,910 1,053 (107) 947

Balance at 31 December 109,956 (8,880) 101,076 79,402 (7,400) 72,002

18 Financial liabilities at amortised cost
2022
£000

2021
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations 1,320 535

Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 15,738 10,254

Other creditors 8,711 8,250

Total financial liabilities at amortised cost 25,769 19,039

Other creditors include £7.4m (2021: £8.2m) due to related undertakings.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

19 Cash and cash equivalents

2022
£000

2021
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Cash at bank and in hand 2,352 13,315

Total cash and cash equivalents 2,352 13,315

20 Related parties

Cincinnati Global Underwriting Agency Limited – Ultimate holding company

At 31 December 2022, the ultimate parent company of Cincinnati Global Underwriting Agency

Limited (“CGUAL”) is Cincinnati Financial Corporation (“CFC”). CFC is incorporated in the United

States of America, and acquired the entire issued share capital of Cincinnati Global Underwriting

Limited (“CGUL”), and its subsidiaries on 20 February 2019. CGUL is the intermediate holding

company of CGUAL, and Cincinnati Global Dedicated No 2 Limited.

Group accounts for CFC are available from the Company Secretary of CGUAL, One Minster Court,

London EC3R 7AA, or at https://cincinnatifinancialcorporation.gcs-web.com selecting investors.

For the 2021, 2022 and 2023 years of account, the CFC participation on Syndicate 318 is as follows

as at 31 December 2022:

Year of account Participation
£000

% of
capacity.....................................................................................................................................................................

2021 214,357 92.5

2022 214,357 92.5

2023 277,461 92.8

Cincinnati Financial Corporation (“CFC”)

Amounts recharged to the Syndicate from CFC were £285,707 in the year. This is in respect of

catastrophe modelling software, internal audit and recording of investments.
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20 Related parties continued
Cincinnati Global Underwriting Services Limited (formerly Beaufort Underwriting Services Limited)
Cincinnati Global Underwriting Services Limited (“CGUSL”) acts solely as a service company for the
introduction of contingency risks into Syndicate 318. Prior to 31 December 2009, Cincinnati Global
Underwriting Services Limited accepted UK/Eire commercial, homeowners’ property and liability and
aviation risks to Syndicate 318. CGUSL is an appointed representative of CGUAL under the
requirements of the Financial Conduct Authority. During the year, there were no cash transactions
between CGUSL and the Syndicate, or any amounts due to or from the Syndicate at 31 December
2022 in respect of CGUSL.

Cincinnati Global Underwriting Agency Limited
Amounts payable to CGUAL at 31 December 2022 totalled £7,369,330 (2021: £8,202,858). These
amounts are included in “Other creditors”.

In aggregate, total fees payable to CGUAL in respect of services provided to the Syndicate for the
three open years amounted to £4,523,822 (2021: £4,535,635). Profit commission of £594,950.83
is due in respect of the 2020 year of account (2019: £1,353,919). Profit commission of £2,861,173
has been accrued on the 2021 year of account (2020: £Nil). Profit commission of £Nil has been
accrued on the 2022 year of account (2021: £Nil). The 2021 year of account will normally close at
31 December 2023 and the 2022 year of account at 31 December 2024.

Expenses totalling £14,430,960.98 (2021: £12,566,341) were recharged to the Syndicate by
CGUAL. Where expenses were incurred jointly by the Managing Agent and the Syndicate, they were
apportioned as follows:

Salaries and related costs – according to the time individuals spent on Syndicate matters
Accommodation costs – according to the number of personnel
Other costs – as appropriate

The reinsurance premium paid to close the 2020 year of account at 31 December 2022 was agreed
by the Board of the Managing Agency on the 6 February 2023. Consequently, the technical
provisions at 31 December 2022 have been presented in the balance sheet under the headings
“reinsurance recoveries anticipated on gross reinsurance to close premiums payable to close the
account” and “reinsurance to close premiums payable to close the account – gross amount” in
accordance with the format prescribed by the Syndicate Accounting Byelaw.

Cincinnati Insurance Company
Cincinnati Insurance Company (“CIC”) is a fellow subsidiary and related party to Cincinnati Financial
Corporation. CIC is an insurance company, and is incorporated in the United States of America. CIC
provided claims handling services to the Syndicate in the year, on several delegated authorities in
the US. The total fees paid to CIC by Syndicate 318 in the year ended 31 December 2022
amounted to US$136,711.

CGUAL participates on a quota share reinsurance of CIC’s California Homeowners High Net Worth
insurance product. As part of this arrangement USD 1.3m was paid to CIC in the form of ceding
commission.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 continued

20 Related parties continued

CSUPR

CGUAL has an agreement with CIC whereby the syndicate underwrites Wind, Hail deductible

business on behalf of CIC. In the calendar year 2022 brokerage of US$650,325 was ceded on a

written total of US$3,251,626.

21 Post balance sheet events

A total of US$3.0m will be transferred to members’ personal reserve funds on 11 April 2023 in

respect of the profit on the 2020 year of account.

22 Foreign exchange rates

2022 2021
Year-end

rate
Average

rate
Year-end

rate
Average

rate.....................................................................................................................................................................
US dollar 1.20 1.24 1.35 1.38

Canadian dollar 1.63 1.61 1.71 1.72

23 Funds at Lloyd’s
In case Syndicate assets prove insufficient to meet members’ underwriting liabilities, every member
is required to hold additional capital at Lloyd’s which is held in trust and known as Funds at Lloyd’s
(FAL).

The Syndicate takes into account a variety of risks when calculating its Solvency Capital
Requirement to arrive at its capital for the forthcoming year, in accordance with the Solvency II
guidelines. This is reviewed and approved by Lloyd’s.

The level of required FAL each member has to maintain is determined by Lloyd’s according to the
nature and the amount of risk to be underwritten. FAL is not hypothecated to any specific Syndicate
participation by a member. Therefore, there are no specific funds available to a Syndicate which can
be precisely identified as its capital.
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2020 Underwriting Year of Account

Financial highlights

2020 underwriting account

£232m
Syndicate capacity

£2.6m
profit for closed year (before non-standard
personal expenses)

1.4%
profit as a percentage of gross premium

£189.4m
gross premium written (including brokerage)

98.5%
combined ratio

1.1%
profit as a percentage of capacity

Note:· The combined ratio is net claims incurred (inclusive

of IBNR) and net operating expenses (excluding

profit/loss on exchange) expressed as a

percentage of net earned premium.
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2020 Underwriting Year of Account

Managing agent’s report

The Managing Agent presents its report on the
2020 Year of Account (YoA) of Syndicate 318
closed at 31 December 2022 together with an
overview of the 2021 YoA to be closed 31
December 2023 and the 2022 YoA to be closed
at 31 December 2024.

This report is prepared in accordance with the
Lloyd’s Syndicate Accounting Byelaw (no.8 of
2005). It accompanies the annual accounts
prepared on an annual accounting basis as
required by Statutory Instruments (No. 1950 of
2008), the Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s
Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts) regulations.

Detailed underwriting account descriptions as
well as future trading prospects are covered in
the Report of the directors of the Managing
Agent.

Directors
The following individuals served on the board at
various periods up to the point of closure of the
2020 year of account.

Directors:
T.C. Cracas (non-executive)
D.C. Eales
A. Hoffmann (resigned 31 August 2022)
M.A. Langston
R.J. Martin (non-executive) (retired by

rotation 27 May 2022)
P.M. Murray (non-executive) (resigned 31

August 2022)
R.A. Pexton (non-executive chairman)
G.M. Tuck
G.A.M. Bonvarlet (non-executive) (appointed 1

June 2022)
R.B. Scott (non-executive) (appointed 31

August 2022)

Company Secretary:

A. Hoffmann (appointed 16 July 2019, resigned

1 January 2022)

S. Kaur (appointed 1 January 2022)

2020 Year of Account

We are pleased to report that the 2020 year of

account has closed on a three year accounting

basis with a profit after personal expenses of

£2.6m, which equates to 1.1% expressed as a

percentage of capacity for a traditional name.

The results on an annual accounting basis are

shown in the main body of the report and

accounts; this commentary is applicable to the

closing and open years on a conventional year

of account basis only.

The Syndicate’s capacity for the 2020 year of

account was £232.5m, which was small

decrease as some third-party names dropped

their capacity. The Syndicate’s principle line of

business continued to be International and US

Property. However, the Syndicate entered into

new lines of business of Credit and Political

Risks, Political Violence, and Specie in order to

diversify the book of business. The Syndicate

ceased underwriting Aviation business in the

year, following a sustained period of difficult

market conditions. For most lines of business,

the rating environment was generally positive as

the market continued to harden following a

number of significant catastrophe losses in

preceding years. Gross Premiums including

brokerage at closing rates of exchange are

£189.4m. On a pure year basis, gross

premiums as adjusted for rates of exchange,

increased by around 9.3% from the previous
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underwriting year. Whilst reinsurance premiums

for the year stood at £29.9m.

The breakdown of premiums split by lines of

business appears in the table below:

Gross written premiums

2020
YoA

%...............................................................................
Aviation 0.4%

Property – Direct and Facultative 67.2%

Property – Binding Authorities 26.7%

Credit and Political Risk 2.4%

Political Violence 1.8%

Specie 1.5%

100%

The 2020 YoA was an extremely active year for

catastrophe losses in the Syndicate, with a

record number of named windstorms which

impacted on the Property account. There were

also losses arising from the COVID19 pandemic

as well as claims arising from social unrest in

the US. The attritional and large loss experience

of the Syndicate was relatively good, as the

improving rating environment had a positive

effect of terms and conditions. Overall, pure

year gross losses incurred of £164.4m were

reduced to £38.5m on a net basis after the

benefits of reinsurance. The major losses of

note to the 2020 year of account are listed

below:

Loss
Gross

£m
Net
£m...............................................................................

Winter Storm Uri 27.8 8.7

Hurricane Ida 18.8 11.5

Hurricane Laura 17.4 15.1

Hurricane Sally 8.9 8.5

Hurricane Zeta 5.0 4.8

Hurricane Delta 2.3 2.3

Covid19 2.1 2.1

Hurricane Eta 1.8 1.8

Social Unrest in the US 1.4 1.4

85.5 56.2

Prior year surplus

The reserves established at last year end in

respect of 2019 year of account and prior years

have developed favourably during 2022. This

has resulted in a release of £5.4m which has

improved the overall result.

2021 Year of Account

The Syndicate marginally reduced its capacity

for the 2021 year of account to £231.8m, after a

small proportion of traditional names elected not

to continue underwriting on the Syndicate. The

current estimate of gross premium income for

the year is £215.7m. The 2021 YoA has

benefitted from a positive rating environment

across almost all lines of business, which has

helped increase premium income. Whilst there

have been losses from natural catastrophe

events, we currently expect the year to close at

a healthy profit.

Members’ balances currently stand at an overall

surplus of £11.4m, after standard personal

expenses. We are forecasting a profit in the

range of 4.2% – 9.2% upon closure of the 2021

year of account.
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2020 Underwriting Year of Account

Managing agent’s report continued

2022 Year of Account

The Syndicate’s capacity remained flat for the

2022 year of account at £231.8m. The current

estimate of gross premium income for the year

is £260.2m. The increase in gross premium

from the previous year of account has arisen

from a combination of improved rating, maturity

of new lines of business, as well as inflation.

Although the year has been affected by

Hurricane Ian, we are still positive about the

overall outcome of the year.

Members’ balances stand at an overall deficit

of £2.5m.

Statement as to disclosure of information to

auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of

approval of this Managing Agent’s report

confirm that, so far as they are each aware,

there is no relevant audit information of which

the Syndicate’s auditors are unaware; and each

Director has taken all the steps that they ought

to have taken as a Director to make themselves

aware of any relevant audit information and to

establish that the Syndicate’s auditors are

aware of that information.

G. M. Tuck
Chief Finance Officer

Cincinnati Global Underwriting Agency Limited
Third Floor
One Minster Court
London EC3R 7AA

22 February 2023
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Statement of managing agent’s responsibilities

The directors of the managing agent are
responsible for preparing the Syndicate
underwriting year accounts in accordance with
the Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s
Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts)
Regulations 2008 and the Lloyd’s Syndicate
Accounting Byelaw. They have elected to
prepare the accounts in accordance with FRS
102 The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland.

Under the Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s
Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts)
Regulations 2008 the directors of the managing
agent must not approve the underwriting year
accounts unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the result of the
underwriting year at closure. In preparing these
accounts, the directors of the managing agent
are required to:

· Select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently and where there are
items which affect more than one year of
account, ensure a treatment which is
equitable between the members of the
Syndicate affected is used;

·Make judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;

· State whether applicable Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to
any material departures disclosed and
explained in the accounts;

· Assess the Syndicate’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and

·Use the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to cease trading, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so. As
explained in note 1 the directors of the
managing agent do not believe that it is
appropriate to prepare the underwriting year
accounts on a going concern basis.

The directors of the managing agent are
responsible for keeping adequate and proper
accounting records that are sufficient to show
and explain the Syndicate’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Syndicate and
enable them to ensure that the underwriting
year accounts comply with the Insurance
Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and
Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008. They
are responsible for such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of accounts that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and have general responsibility for taking
such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the company and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

On behalf of the board

G. M. Tuck
Chief Finance Officer

22 February 2023
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2020 Underwriting Year of Account

Independent auditor’s report to the Members of Syndicate 318 –
2020 closed year of account

Report on the audit of the syndicate underwriting
year accounts for the 2020 closed year of account
for the three years ended 31 December 2022

Opinion
In our opinion the syndicate underwriting year
accounts of Syndicate 318 (the ‘syndicate’):

· give a true and fair view of the profit/loss for
the 2020 closed year of account;

· have been properly prepared in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice including Financial
Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland”; and

· have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of The Insurance Accounts
Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate
Accounts) Regulations 2008 and in
accordance with the Lloyd’s Syndicate
Accounting Byelaw (no. 8 of 2005).

We have audited the syndicate underwriting
year accounts which comprise:

· the statement of profit or loss;

· the balance sheet;

· the statement of members’ balances;

· the statement of cash flows; and

· the related notes 1 to 16.

The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland”, the Insurance

Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and
Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008 and the
Lloyd’s Syndicate Accounting Byelaw (no. 8 of
2005).

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in
the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
syndicate underwriting year accounts section of
our report.

We are independent of the syndicate in
accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the syndicate
underwriting year accounts in the UK, including
the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s’)
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information
The other information comprises the
information included in the report and accounts
(“annual report”), other than the syndicate
underwriting year accounts and our auditor’s
report thereon. The managing agent is
responsible for the other information contained
within the annual report. Our opinion on the
syndicate underwriting year accounts does not
cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent
with the syndicate underwriting year accounts or
our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
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misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine
whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement themselves. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of managing agent
As explained more fully in the managing agent’s
responsibilities statement, the managing agent
is responsible for the preparation of the
syndicate underwriting year accounts under the
Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate
and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008 and
in accordance with the Lloyd’s Syndicate
Accounting Byelaw (no. 8 of 2005), and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the result, and for such internal control as the
managing agent determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of syndicate underwriting
year accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the syndicate underwriting
accounts, the managing agent is responsible for
assessing the syndicate’s ability to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business, disclosing, as applicable,
any matters that impact its ability to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
syndicate underwriting year accounts
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the syndicate
underwriting year accounts as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these syndicate
underwriting year accounts.

A further description of our responsibilities for
the audit of the syndicate underwriting year
accounts is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered
capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations. We
design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect
material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the syndicate and
its control environment, and reviewed the
syndicate’s documentation of their policies and
procedures relating to fraud and compliance
with laws and regulations. We also enquired of
management, about their own identification and
assessment of the risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and
regulatory framework that the syndicate
operates in, and identified the key laws and
regulations that:

· had a direct effect on the determination of
material amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. These included the
Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s
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2020 Underwriting Year of Account

Independent auditor’s report to the Members of Syndicate 318 –
2020 closed year of account continued

Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts)
Regulations 2008 and the Lloyd’s Syndicate
Accounting Byelaw (no. 8 of 2005)]; and

· do not have a direct effect on the financial
statements but compliance with which may
be fundamental to the syndicate’s ability to
operate or to avoid a material penalty.
These included the requirements of
Solvency II.

We discussed among the audit engagement
team including relevant internal specialists such
as actuarial and IT, regarding the opportunities
and incentives that may exist within the
organisation for fraud and how and where fraud
might occur in the underwriting year accounts.

As a result of performing the above, we
identified the greatest potential for fraud or
non-compliance with laws and regulations in the
following area, and our specific procedures
performed to address it are described below:

· Technical provisions are a key area of
management judgement with inherent
uncertainty and materiality. In particular
there is a high level of judgement required in
the projections of future claims on
catrostropic events hence for the syndicate
we have pinpointed the significant risk to the
assumptions used for the Incurred but not
reported (IBNR) in relation to catrostropic
events.

Our response to this risk was:

· Evaluated the design and implementation of
internal controls around the reserving cycle.
We have tested the controls over data,
model, assumptions, methodology and
results as per ISA 540R;

· Utilisied our actuarial specialists to carry out
an Benchmarking of the major catastrophe

events across our Lloyd’s and London
market and challenge the general
methodology and approach to assumptions
including initial expected loss ratio
benchmarking;

· Performed attribute testing on the data used
in the actuarial calculations. We have
selected a sample of items and trace
selections to underlying Syndicate records
to ensure the data is accurate and
complete;

· Performed a ‘stand back’ assessment to
consider all the evidence received from
audit procedures performed and concluded
if there is any evidence of overall
management bias.

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we
are also required to perform specific procedures
to respond to the risk of management override.
In addressing the risk of fraud through
management override of controls, we tested the
appropriateness of journal entries and other
adjustments; assessed whether the judgements
made in making accounting estimates are
indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the
business rationale of any significant transactions
that are unusual or outside the normal course of
business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to
respond to the risks identified included the
following:

· reviewing underwriting year accounts
disclosures by testing to supporting
documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations
described as having a direct effect on the
underwriting year accounts;

· performing analytical procedures to identify
any unusual or unexpected relationships
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that may indicate risks of material
misstatement due to fraud;

· enquiring of management concerning actual
and potential litigation and claims, and
instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations; and

· reading minutes of meetings of those
charged with governance, reviewing internal
audit reports, and reviewing correspondence
with Lloyd’s.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by The
Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate
and Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in
the course of the audit:

· the information given in the managing
agent’s report for the financial year for which
the syndicate underwriting year accounts
are prepared is consistent with the syndicate
underwriting year accounts; and

· the managing agent’s report has been
prepared in accordance with the Insurance
Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s Syndicate and
Aggregate Accounts) Regulations 2008.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding
of the syndicate and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified
any material misstatements in the managing
agent’s report.

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception
Under the Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s
Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts)
Regulations 2008 and Lloyd’s Syndicate
Accounting Byelaw (no.8 of 2005) we are
required to report in respect of the following
matters if, in our opinion:

· the managing agent in respect of the
syndicate has not kept adequate or proper
accounting records; or

· the syndicate underwriting year accounts
are not in agreement with the accounting
records or

· we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit; or

· the syndicate underwriting year accounts
are not in compliance with the requirements
of paragraph 5 of Schedule 1 of the
Insurance Accounts Directive (Lloyd’s
Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts)
Regulations 2008.

We have nothing to report in respect of these
matters.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the syndicate’s
members, as a body, in accordance with
regulation 6 of the Insurance Accounts Directive
(Lloyd’s Syndicate and Aggregate Accounts)
Regulations 2008. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the
syndicate’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the
syndicate’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

Claire Clough ACA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom
27 February 2023
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Statement of profit or loss: Technical account – general business for the 2020
closed year of account for the three years ended 31 December 2022

Technical account – general business

£000 £000Note.....................................................................................................................................................................
Earned premiums, net of reinsurance
Gross premiums written 4 189,381

Outward reinsurance premiums (29,905)

159,476

Reinsurance to close premiums received, net of reinsurance 4/15 81,138

Allocated investment return transferred from the non-technical
account 301

Other technical income, net of reinsurance –

Claims incurred, net of reinsurance
Claims paid

Gross amount (124,793)

Reinsurers’ share 11,402

(113,391)

Reinsurance to close premium payable, net of reinsurance 5 (75,661)

(189,052)

Net operating expenses 7 (48,800)

Balance on the technical account – for general business 3,063

The underwriting year has closed: all items therefore relate to discontinued operations.

The notes on pages 78 to 90 form part of these accounts.
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Non-technical account
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Balance on the general business technical account 3,063

Income from investments 2,362

Realised losses on investments (744)

Unrealised losses on investments (1,198)

Investment expenses and charges (120)

Allocated investment return transferred to general business technical account (301)

Loss on exchange (431)

Profit for the closed year of account 2,631

There are no recognised gains or losses in the accounting period other than those dealt with in the
technical and non-technical accounts.

Total comprehensive income for the year is £2,631,551.

The notes on pages 78 to 90 form part of these accounts.
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2020 Underwriting Year of Account

Balance sheet as at 31 December 2022

£000 £000Note.....................................................................................................................................................................
Assets
Investments
Other financial investments 8/16 66,707

Deposits with ceded undertakings 8/16 77

66,784

Debtors
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations 9 602

Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations 10 8,436

Other debtors 3,461

12,499

Reinsurance recoveries anticipated on gross reinsurance to close
premiums payable to close the account 5 30,840

Other assets
Cash at bank and in hand 16 2,352

Total assets 112,475

The notes on pages 78 to 90 form part of these accounts.
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£000 £000Note.....................................................................................................................................................................
Liabilities
Capital and reserves
Amounts due to members 2,511

Reinsurance to close premiums payable to close the account – gross
amount 5 106,501

Creditors
Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations 11 659

Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 12 1,632

Other creditors including taxation and social security 577

2,868

Accruals and deferred income 595

Total liabilities 112,475

The financial statements on pages 72 to 90 were approved by the Board of Cincinnati Global
Underwriting Agency Limited on 22 February 2023 and were signed on its behalf by

D. C. Eales
Chief Executive Officer

G. M. Tuck
Chief Finance Officer

27 February 2023

The notes on pages 78 to 90 form part of these accounts.
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2020 Underwriting Year of Account

Statement of members’ balances for the 36 months ended 31 December 2022

£000.....................................................................................................................................................................
Members’ balances brought forward at 1 January –

Profit for closed year of account 2,631

Open year cash calls made –

Members’ agents fees (120)

Members’ balances carried forward at 31 December 2022 2,511

The notes on pages 78 to 90 form part of these accounts.
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Statement of cash flows for the 36 months ended 31 December 2022

£000Note.....................................................................................................................................................................
Closed year cash flow
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 2,631

Unrealised gains on investments 1,198

Net realised foreign exchange gains (7,245)

Non cash consideration received as part of RITC received 15 (66,038)

RITC premium payable net of reinsurance 5 75,661

Decrease in debtors, subrogation and salvage and prepayments (11,072)

Increase in creditors 440

Net cash outflow from operating activities (4,425)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions of other financial instruments (64,573)

Proceeds from sale of other financial instruments 71,470

Net cash inflow from investing activities 6,897

Cash flow from financing activities:
Members’ agents’ fees paid on behalf of members (120)

Net cash outflow from financing activities (120)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,352

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January –

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 16 2,352

The notes on pages 78 to 90 form part of these accounts.
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2020 Underwriting Year of Account

Notes to the accounts for the 36 months ended 31 December 2022

1
(a) Basis of preparation
The Syndicate underwriting year accounts have been prepared under the Insurance Accounts
Directive (“Lloyd’s Syndicates and Aggregate Accounts”) Regulations 2008 (“the Lloyd’s
Regulations”) the Syndicate Accounting Byelaw, and Financial Reporting Standard 102, The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (“FRS 102”), and
Financial Reporting Standard 103 Insurance Contracts (“FRS 103”).

Whilst the directors of the managing agent have a reasonable expectation that the Syndicate has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, these financial
statements represent the participation of members in the 2020 year of account, which closed on 31
December 2022. The accumulated profit of the 2020 year of account will be distributed shortly after
publication of these accounts. Therefore the 2020 year of account is not continuing to trade and,
accordingly the directors have not adopted the going concern basis in the preparation of these
accounts. This has no effect on the amounts reported in the accounts as the 2020 year of account
will be closed by payment of a reinsurance to close premium, as outlined in note 5 below, which is
consistent with the normal course of business for a Lloyd’s Syndicate and with the approach we
have applied to earlier underwriting years.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors of the Managing Agent have made judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Syndicate’s accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
estimates are recognised prospectively. Refer to note 2 in the annual accounts for the treatment of
estimates.

As each Syndicate year of account is a separate annual venture, there are no comparative figures.

(b) Going concern
The Board of CGUAL has a reasonable expectation that the Syndicate has adequate resources to
continue underwriting for the foreseeable future, and with the Syndicate’s ability to continue being a
going concern in the future.

2 Accounting policies
(a) Underwriting transactions
The underwriting accounts for each year of account are normally kept open for three years before
the result on that year is determined. At the end of the three years, outstanding liabilities can
normally be determined with sufficient accuracy to permit the year of account to be closed by
payment of a reinsurance to close premium to the successor year of account.
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2 Accounting policies continued
(b) Reinsurance to close premium received
The reinsurance to close premium received was closed into the 2020 year of account at
31 December 2021.

The reinsurance to close premium is determined by reference to the outstanding technical provisions
(including those for outstanding claims, unearned premiums, net of deferred acquisition costs, and
unexpired risks) relating to the closed year and all previous closed years reinsured therein. Although
this estimate of net outstanding liabilities is considered to be fair and reasonable, it is implicit in the
estimation procedure that the ultimate liabilities will be at variance from the premium so determined.
The reinsurance to close premium transfers the liability in respect of all claims, reinsurance premiums,
return premiums and other payments in respect of the closing year (and previous closed years
reinsured therein) to the members of the successor year of account and gives them the benefit of
refunds, recoveries, premiums due and other income in respect of those years in so far as they have
not been credited in these accounts.

The provision for claims comprises amounts set aside for claims notified and claims incurred but not
yet reported (“IBNR”).

The amount included in respect of IBNR is based on statistical techniques and underwriting
judgements applied by the Managing Agent’s management and reviewed by external consulting
actuaries. These techniques generally involve projecting from past experience of the development of
claims over time to form a view of the likely ultimate claims to be experienced for more recent
underwriting years, having regard to variations in the business accepted and the underlying terms
and conditions. The provision for claims also includes amounts in respect of internal and external
claims handling costs.

The reinsurers’ share of provisions for claims is based on calculated amounts of outstanding claims
and projections for IBNR, net of estimated irrecoverable amounts, having regard to the reinsurance
programme in place for the class of business, the claims experience for the year and the current
security rating of the reinsurance companies involved. The Syndicate uses a number of statistical
techniques to assist in making these estimates.

Accordingly, the most critical assumption as regards claims provisions is that the past is a
reasonable predictor of the likely level of claims development.

It is considered that the provisions for gross claims and related reinsurance recoveries are fairly
stated on the basis of the information currently available. However, ultimate liability will vary as a
result of subsequent information and events, and this may result in significant adjustments to the
amounts provided. Adjustments to the amounts of claims provisions established in prior years are
reflected in the financial statements for the period in which the adjustments are made. The methods
used, and the estimates made, are reviewed regularly.
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2020 Underwriting Year of Account

Notes to the accounts for the 36 months ended 31 December 2022 continued

2 Accounting policies continued

(c) Premiums written and earned

Gross premiums are allocated to years of account on the basis of the inception date of the policy.

Commission and brokerage are charged to the year of account to which the relevant policy is

allocated. Policies written under binding authorities, lineslips or consortium arrangements are

allocated to the year of account into which the arrangement incepts. Additional and return premiums

follow the year of account of the original premium. Premiums are shown gross of brokerage payable

and exclude taxes and duties levied on them. Estimates are made for pipeline premiums,

representing amounts due but not yet notified to the Syndicate year of account.

Written premium is earned according to the risk profile of the policy.

Outwards reinsurance premiums ceded are attributed to the same year as the original risk being

protected.

(d) Claims paid

Gross claims paid are allocated to the same year of account as that to which the corresponding

premiums are allocated and include internal and external claims settlement expenses. Reinsurance

recoveries are allocated to the year of account to which the claim was charged.

(e) Reinsurance to close premium payable

The reinsurance to close premium paid was closed into the 2021 year of account at 31 December

2022.

The reinsurance to close premium is determined by reference to the outstanding technical provisions

(including those for outstanding claims, unearned premiums, net of deferred acquisition costs, and

unexpired risks) relating to the closed year and to all previous closed years reinsured therein.

Although this estimate of net outstanding liabilities is considered to be fair and reasonable, it is

implicit in the estimation procedure that the ultimate liabilities will be at variance from the premium so

determined. The reinsurance to close premium transfers the liability in respect of all claims,

reinsurance premiums, return premiums and other payments in respect of the closing year (and

previous closed years reinsured therein) to the members of the successor year of account and gives

them the benefit of refunds, recoveries, premiums due and other income in respect of those years in

so far as they have not been credited in these accounts.

The provision for claims comprises amounts set aside for claims notified and claims IBNR.
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2 Accounting policies continued

(e) Reinsurance to close premium payable continued

The amount included in respect of IBNR is based on statistical techniques and underwriting

judgements applied by the Managing Agent’s management and reviewed by external consulting

actuaries. These techniques generally involve projecting from past experience of the development of

claims over time to form a view of the likely ultimate claims to be experienced for more recent

underwriting years, having regard to variations in the business accepted and the underlying terms

and conditions. The provision for claims also includes amounts in respect of internal and external

claims handling costs.

The reinsurers’ share of provisions for claims is based on calculated amounts of outstanding claims

and projections for IBNR, net of estimated irrecoverable amounts, having regard to the reinsurance

programme in place for the class of business, the claims experience for the year and the current

security rating of the reinsurance companies involved. The Syndicate uses a number of statistical

techniques to assist in making these estimates.

Accordingly the most critical assumption as regards claims provisions is that the past is a

reasonable predictor of the likely level of claims development.

It is considered that the provisions for gross claims and related reinsurance recoveries are fairly

stated on the basis of the information currently available. However, ultimate liability will vary as a

result of subsequent information and events and this may result in significant adjustments to the

amounts provided. Adjustments to the amounts of claims provisions established in prior years are

reflected in the financial statements for the period in which the adjustments are made. The methods

used, and the estimates made, are reviewed regularly.

(f) Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs, comprising commission and other internal and external costs related to the

acquisition of new insurance contracts are deferred to the extent that they are attributable to

premiums unearned at the balance sheet date.

(g) Financial assets and liabilities

In applying FRS 102, the Syndicate has chosen to apply the recognition and measurement

provisions of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (as adopted for use in

the EU).
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2020 Underwriting Year of Account

Notes to the accounts for the 36 months ended 31 December 2022 continued

2 Accounting policies continued
(g) Financial assets and liabilities continued
Classification
The accounting classification of financial assets and liabilities determines how they are measured
and changes in those values are presented in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive Income. Financial assets and liabilities are classified on their initial recognition.
Subsequent reclassifications are permitted only in restricted circumstances.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss comprise financial assets
and financial liabilities held for trading and those designated as such on initial recognition.
Investments in shares and other variable yield securities, units in unit trusts, and debt and other fixed
income securities are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition, as they
are managed on a fair value basis in accordance with the Syndicate’s investment strategy.

The Syndicate does not hold financial assets or financial liabilities for trading purposes, although
derivatives (assets or liabilities) held by the Syndicate are categorised as held for trading.

Deposits with credit institutions, debtors, and accrued interest are classified as loans and
receivables.

Recognition
Financial instruments are recognised when the Syndicate becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised if the Syndicate‘s contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or if the Syndicate transfers the financial asset to
another party without retaining control of substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. A financial
liability is derecognised when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled, or expire.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised, as
applicable, on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Syndicate commits itself to purchase or sell the
asset.

Measurement
A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for a financial asset or
financial liability not at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with fair value changes
recognised immediately in profit or loss. Net gains or net losses on financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss includes foreign exchange gains/losses arising on their translation to the
functional currency, but excludes interest and dividend income.
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2 Accounting policies continued

Identification and measurement of impairment

At each reporting date, the Syndicate assesses whether there is objective evidence that financial

assets not at fair value through profit or loss are impaired. Financial assets are impaired when

objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of an

asset, and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows on the asset that can be

estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes observable data that comes to the

attention of the Syndicate about any significant financial difficulty of the issuer, or significant changes

in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the issuer operates.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The

remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk

characteristics.

An impairment loss recognised reduces the carrying amount of the impaired asset directly. All

impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can

be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. For financial

assets measured at amortised cost, the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Off-setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the balance

sheet when, and only when, the Syndicate currently has a legal right to set off the amounts and

intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(h) Investment return

Investment return comprises investment income, realised investment gains and losses and

movements in unrealised gains and losses, net of investment expenses and charges. Investment

return arising in each calendar year on all the Syndicate’s investments is allocated to open years of

account in proportion to the average funds available for investment attributable to those years.

Investment returns in respect of overseas deposits are allocated to the year of account which funded

these deposits.

Realised gains and losses on investments carried at market value are calculated as the difference

between sale proceeds and purchase price. Movements in unrealised gains and losses on

investments represent the difference between their valuation at the balance sheet date and their
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2020 Underwriting Year of Account

Notes to the accounts for the 36 months ended 31 December 2022 continued

2 Accounting policies continued

(h) Investment return continued

purchase price or, if they have been previously valued, their valuation at the end of the previous

calendar year, together with the reversal of unrealised gains and losses recognised in earlier

calendar years in respect of investment disposals in the current period.

Investment return is initially recorded in the non-technical account. A transfer is made from the

non-technical account to the general business technical account to reflect the investment return

on funds supporting underwriting business. All investment return is considered to arise on such

funds.

(i) Net operating expenses

Where expenses are incurred by the Managing Agent or on behalf of the Managing Agent in relation

to the administration of the Syndicate, the amounts in question are apportioned using varying

methods depending on the expense type. Expenses which are incurred jointly for the Managing

Agent and Syndicate are apportioned depending on the amount of work performed, resources used

and the volume of business transacted. Net operating expenses are allocated to the year of account

for which they are incurred.

The parent company of the Managing Agent operates a defined contribution pension scheme. It

recharges salaries and related costs to the Syndicate which includes an element for pension costs.

These pension costs are recognised in full in the period to which the recharge relates.

Amounts recharged by the Managing Agent include costs arising from the use of assets in the

period. These rental costs are expensed in full in the period to which the recharge relates.

(j) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash balances held in the current accounts at the year end,

and are used by the Syndicate in the management of its short term commitments.

(k) Taxation

Under Schedule 19 of the Finance Act 1993, Managing Agents are not required to deduct basic rate

income tax from trading income. In addition, all UK basic income tax deducted from Syndicate

investment income is recoverable by Managing Agents and consequently the distribution made to

members or their Members’ Agents is gross of tax. Capital appreciation falls within trading income

and is also distributed gross of tax. It is the responsibility of members to agree and settle their tax

liabilities with HM Revenue & Customs.
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2 Accounting policies continued

(k) Taxation continued

No provision has been made for any United States Federal Income Tax or any overseas tax payable

on the underwriting results or investment earnings.

Members resident overseas for tax purposes are responsible for agreeing and settling any tax

liabilities with the taxation authorities of their country of residence.

(l) Basis of currency translation

Transactions in US dollars and Canadian dollars are translated at the rate of exchange at the

balance sheet date. Underwriting transactions denominated in other foreign currencies are included

at the rate of exchange ruling at the date the transaction is processed.

Assets and liabilities are re-translated into Sterling at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date.

Differences arising on the re-translation of foreign currency amounts are included in the

non-technical account.

3 Risk and capital management

The board of directors of the Managing Agent has overall responsibility for the establishment and

oversight of the Syndicate’s risk and capital management. An overview of the Managing Agent’s

risk management structure is detailed on page 14, and more detailed definitions of the key

risks and further explanation on how they affect the Syndicate are detailed in notes on

page 35.

Effective from 1 January 2022, the RITC process means that the Insurance, Financial, Credit,

Liquidity, Market and Capital risks are transferred to the accepting 2021 Year of Account of the

Syndicate. Accordingly, these Underwriting Year accounts do not have any associated disclosures

as required by section 34 of FRS 102.

Full disclosures relating to these risks are provided in the main Annual Accounts of the Syndicate.
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2020 Underwriting Year of Account

Notes to the accounts for the 36 months ended 31 December 2022 continued

4 Analysis of underwriting result

Gross
premiums

written
and

earned
£000

Gross
claims

incurred
£000

Net
operating
expenses

£000

Reinsurance
balance

£000
Total
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Direct insurance:
Marine aviation and transport (4,746) 6,321 1,092 (110) 2,557

Fire and other damage to property 132,582 (88,891) (35,188) (7,737) 766

Motor (other classes) 699 (321) (243) 5 140

Credit and suretyship 4,205 – (1,190) (662) 2,353

Third party liability 15 (9) (4) (6) (4)

Reinsurance acceptances 145,573 (148,394) (13,267) 13,038 (3,050)

Total 278,328 (231,294) (48,800) 4,528 2,762

All premiums were written in the UK. All net assets and profit are derived from UK business.

Total gross premium written and earned arise from gross premiums written on the underwriting year
of account, and the reinsurance to close premium accepted from the 2019 and prior years of
account. The gross premiums written include £88,947,311 of reinsurance acceptances from the
2019 and prior years reinsurance to close premium. Reinsurance balances include £7,808,931 of
reinsurance recoverable from the 2019 and prior years reinsurance to close premium.

Geographical analysis by destination
Gross

premiums
written

£000.....................................................................................................................................................................
UK 97,616

US 131,274

Other 49,438

Total 278,328

5 Reinsurance to close premium payable net of reinsurance
Reported

£000
IBNR
£000

Total
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Gross outstandings 68,912 37,589 106,501

Reinsurance recoveries anticipated (24,037) (6,803) (30,840)

Net 44,875 30,786 75,661
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6 Analysis of result by year of account
2019 & prior

years of
account

£000

2020 pure
year of

account
£000

Total
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Technical account balance before allocated investment return
and net operating expenses 5,414 46,148 51,562

Brokerage and commission on gross premium – (35,009) (35,009)

Acquisition costs – other – (8,391) (8,391)

5,414 2,748 8,162

7 Net operating expenses
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Acquisition costs – brokerage 35,009

Acquisition costs – other 8,391

Administrative expenses 5,400

48,800

The closed year profit is stated after charging:
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Auditor remuneration
Audit – Deloitte LLP 171

Audit related assurance services – Deloitte LLP 65

Fees payable to the Syndicate auditor for the audit of the managing agent 18

254

8 Financial investments
Market

value
£000

Cost
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Holdings in collective investment schemes 16,117 16,117

Debt securities and other fixed income securities 46,380 51,416

Overseas deposits as investments 4,210 4,209

Deposits with ceded undertakings 77 77

Total investments 66,784 71,819
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2020 Underwriting Year of Account

Notes to the accounts for the 36 months ended 31 December 2022 continued

9 Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Due within one year 602

602

10 Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Due within one year 8,436

8,436

11 Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Due within one year 659

659

12 Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Due within one year 1,632

1,632

13 Post balance sheet events

The reinsurance premium paid to close the 2020 year of account at 31 December 2022 was agreed

by the Board of the Managing Agency on the 6 February 2023. Consequently the technical

provisions at 31 December 2022 have been presented in the balance sheet under the headings

“reinsurance recoveries anticipated on gross reinsurance to close premiums payable to close the

account” and “reinsurance to close premiums payable to close the account – gross amount” in

accordance with the format prescribed by the Syndicate Accounting Byelaw.

A total of $3.01m will be transferred to members’ personal reserve funds on 11 April 2023 in respect

of the 2020 year of account.
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14 Related parties

Cincinnati Global Underwriting Agency Limited – Ultimate holding company

At 31 December 2022, the ultimate parent company of Cincinnati Global Underwriting Agency

Limited (“CGUAL”) is Cincinnati Financial Corporation (“CFC”). CFC is incorporated in the United

States of America, and acquired the entire issued share capital of Cincinnati Global Underwriting

Limited (“CGUL”), and its subsidiaries on 20 February 2019. CGUL is the intermediate holding

company of CGUAL, and Cincinnati Global Dedicated No 2 Limited.

Group accounts for CFC are available from the Company Secretary of CGUAL, One Minster Court,

London EC3R 7AA, or at https://cincinnatifinancialcorporation.gcs-web.com selecting investors.

For the 2021, 2022 and 2023 years of account, the CFC participation on Syndicate 318 is as follows:

Year of account Participation
£000

% of
capacity.....................................................................................................................................................................

2021 214,357 92.5

2022 214,357 92.5

2023 277,461 92.8

Cincinnati Global Underwriting Services Limited (formerly Beaufort Underwriting Services Limited)

Cincinnati Global Underwriting Services Limited (“CGUSL”) acted solely as a service company for

the introduction of UK/Eire commercial, homeowners’ property and liability and aviation risks to

Syndicate 318. CGUSL is an appointed representative of CGUAL. During the year, there were no

cash transactions between CGUSL and the Syndicate, or any amounts due to or from the Syndicate

at 31 December 2022 in respect of CGUSL.

The Syndicate ceased accepting new or renewal business via CGUSL on 31 December 2009.

Cincinnati Global Underwriting Agency Limited

Total fees payable to CGUAL in respect of services provided to the Syndicate and chargeable to the

2020 year of account amounted to £1,511,237.

Profit commission of £594,951 has been accrued in respect of the 2020 year of account. Expenses

totalling £11,739,290 were recharged to the Syndicate in 2020 year of account by CGUAL.

Where expenses were incurred jointly by the Managing Agent and the Syndicate, they were

apportioned as follows:

Salaries and related costs – according to time of each individual spent on Syndicate matters

Accommodation costs – according to number of personnel

Other costs – as appropriate
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Notes to the accounts for the 36 months ended 31 December 2022 continued

15 Consideration for RITC received

£000.....................................................................................................................................................................
Non cash consideration received for the net RITC comprises:

Portfolio investments 67,634

Debtors 1,427

Creditors (3,023)

Non cash consideration received 66,038

Cash 13,315

Total cash and non cash consideration for RITC received 79,353

Amounts payable to members’ on closure of the 2019 year of account (5,892)

Reinsurance to close premiums received, net of reinsurance received at

1 January 2022 73,461

Profit on foreign exchange 7,677

Reinsurance to close premiums received, net of reinsurance 81,138

16 Movement in opening and closing portfolio investments net of financing

At 1
January

2020
£000

Received within
RITC premium

£000
Cash flow

£000

Change in fair
value and

foreign
exchange

£000

At 31
December

2022
£000.....................................................................................................................................................................

Cash – 13,315 (10,963) – 2,352

Portfolio investments – 67,634 (6,897) 6,047 66,784

Total portfolio investments – 80,949 (17,860) 6,047 69,136
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Seven year summary of results for a traditional Name (unaudited)

An unaudited seven year summary prepared from the results of the Syndicate for a traditional Name
with a £10,000 share is shown below.

This has not been prepared in accordance with UK financial reporting standards, or the accounting
policies disclosed. Gross premiums, and net operating expenses are stated net of brokerage, and
overrider commissions receivable.

Personal expenses have been stated at the amount which would be incurred pro rata by individual
members writing the illustrative premium income in the Syndicate irrespective of any minimum
charge applicable. Corporate members may be charged at different rates. Foreign tax, which may be
treated as a credit for personal tax purposes has been excluded.

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020.....................................................................................................................................................................
Syndicate allocated capacity £235.04m £234.85m £235.04 £234.77 £234.14 £233.55 £232.50

Capacity utilised 59.6% 53.0% 52.5% 54.0% 59.0% 53.4% 66.4%

Results for an illustrative share of £10,000
£ £ £ £ £ £ £.....................................................................................................................................................................

Gross premiums (net of brokerage) 5,960 5,298 5,253 5,401 5,901 5,342 6,640

Net premiums 4,947 4,463 4,298 4,258 4,659 4,301 5,353
Reinsurance to close from an

earlier account 2,538 2,315 2,286 2,731 3,465 3,131 3,490
Net claims (3,163) (2,924) (4,489) (6,573) (5,314) (3,526) (4,877)
Reinsurance to close (2,463) (2,188) (2,804) (3,552) (3,087) (3,145) (3,254)
Profit/(loss) on exchange 34 19 23 (12) 1 2 (19)
Net operating expenses (303) (330) (319) (330) (372) (394) (442)

Balance on technical account 1,590 1,355 (1,005) (3,488) (648) 369 251
Investment income and gains less

losses, less expenses and
charges 77 93 83 104 120 61 13

Profit/(loss) before personal expenses 1,667 1,448 (922) (3,374) (528) 430 264
Illustrative personal expenses for

a traditional Name
Managing agent’s salary (65) (65) (65) (65) (65) (65) (65)
Central Fund contributions (23) (24) (22) (25) (28) (24) (31)
Profit commission (311) (267) – – – (58) (26)
Lloyd’s subscription (23) (24) (28) (28) (29) (25) (30)

(422) (380) (115) (118) (122) (172) (152)

Profit/(loss) after illustrative profit
commission and illustrative
personal expenses 1,245 1,068 (1,037) (3,492) (650) 258 112

For the 2020 year of account, an illustrative share of £10,000 represents 0.00430% of allocated
capacity. 2020 year of account had 302 members.
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Contacts

Underwriting Management

Steve Anderson Head of Delegated Underwriting
Telephone: 020 7220 8259
Email: steve.anderson@cinfinglobal.com

Nick Chalk Active Underwriter
Telephone: 020 7220 8202
Email: Nick.Chalk@cinfinglobal.com

Simon Pope Head of Property Underwriting –
Direct and Facaultative
Telephone: 020 7220 8204
Email: simon.pope@cinfinglobal.com

Tom Gardner Senior Underwriter War,
Terrorism and Political Violence
Telephone: 020 7220 8208
Email: Tom.Gardner@cinfinglobal.com

James Steele-Perkins Senior Underwriter
Credit & Political Risk
Telephone: 0207 220 8205
Email: James.Steele-perkins@cinfinglobal.com

Francis Hernandez Head of Contingency
Telephone: 0207 220 8209
Email: Francis.hernandez@cinfinglobal.com

Ian Seakens Head of Specie
Telephone: 0207 220 820
Email: Ian.seakens@cinfinglobal.com

Agency Management

Derek Eales Chief Executive Officer
Telephone: 020 7220 8201
Email: derek.eales@cinfinglobal.com

Graham Tuck Chief Finance Officer
Telephone: 020 7220 8223
Email: graham.tuck@cinfinglobal.com

Sushil Kaur Compliance Officer/Company
Secretary
Telephone: 020 7220 8266
Email: sushil.kaur@cinfinglobal.com

Cincinnati Global Underwriting Agency Limited
One Minster Court
Mincing Lane
London EC3R 7AA

www.cinfinglobal.com

Cincinnati Global Underwriting Agency Limited is the Lloyd’s Managing Agent for Cincinnati Global
Syndicate 318 and is authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority and regulated by the Financial
Conduct Authority and the Prudential Regulation Authority.
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